%%f%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ&?%%éf%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ@%%ﬁ
o B HE i P 5 2 B IR S 5 R AT ] B 0 i 2 N BE A AR 2 R
iﬁﬁ%\WﬁﬁﬁiiEﬁﬁﬂ%WﬁWWﬁ%Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
P AR (% ) AR ]

(B BB 2 7 194 R 7 )
(et 1R 5% - 8238)

BE222F12HA3IHILEELEXEHE NN
BB ARG A WA (TR ) GEM K §F &
GEM 1Y i v > T4 /5 AH Lb 2 H A 76 B 22 Bt b Tl B9 2 /) 4 A 8 e 3 & R B aY A s Y

/ARSI 72 P O DR A S I ' < g DN o < N /A N DR (o
7 KSR R A 5 AR 7 AR SR R E -

mﬁ%thﬁV\ﬂ e /N ANF EGEMEE WS A it N EhE &
B R K 2 R T B R B o [R] R ﬁ%%%f&MEEG%% e il
%mm%o

it 38 g R AP AR 4 F] R B S P B R L 2R BN RO B i
5E BEVE TR A 5 AT A] BE W - S W 2 o B BE A AR 2 R S AT A R 2 1A I
E 2E B A A B % A2 TG B AT o] 16 2K TR AT o B AT e

KL 0 AL T TR SE T (GEM @& % L 17 3 A (TGEM _E T % AL ) il T # > B 7
18 A B I 5 (PEIR) AR 2 Al ([ 2 Al ) B9 &5 AR o /] 19 3 2 ([ ) BT
WA 2 19 & A I [R] KAl R 9 i BT o A B AE M ) A A AR
i g L H P R P A AR o o P i R T A T B T I Y O o A i
2 B 7F I 57 H G S 2 AT ] H At IR 2 LS AR L i 2P AT o] R E
4 e

3



AN FEHEG(EFG])RAR S MA LR K& H M E S A (A %] 8 CE20224F
12431 H 1L FE WA S KB ([ R FER]) o AR & HA AR A 20224 4 E k&2
3C > AT 5 GEM B R B A BE A AE S AR A A0 B SO R RO A B R R E -

ARAGZERFRBFCHARAIFLZ B GHRN -

K G
AR A (2 ) AR 2 W]
H 1T EF
fig i f

7 Hs > 20234F3 H31 H

ARG A EF GO HITEFEEMBICLE: FRITESE L CHFETLLE D LB
BT EF TR LA B E A R FE SR

A28 0 B AT R B S BT GEM i 2 L T A Al i T B 42 A B AR 2N A
& A E LR 2 By & ORI A R AR ) R 9B A AT e A A E T
A G P R B R PR PTG - A L PR A R T Y
SEM o IR A R I AE R or o H I R AT AR A S IE LS B L i 5P
AT ] B 2 2 2 gl 25 o

Ko 4 H R #2 HEG E D RE A H R GEM A 3% http://www.hkgem.com Y [ %
B oS\l o8 H ] A Ol A R K 28 5] A 2 http://www. wintogroup.hk & # K AR B


http://www.hkgem.com

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ERSRE (120) AR AT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REASHEESIMRINERAR)

Stock Code B 51X 55 : 8238




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 to our
shareholders and investors.

Since early 2020, the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic
spread worldwide and caused significant threats to the global
health and economy. The prolonged COVID-19 pandemic in
2021 and 2022, had resulted in, among other things, ongoing
travel restrictions, prolonged closures of workplaces, lockdowns
in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area. COVID-19
outbreaks in Hong Kong and Guangdong were experienced in
the early part of the year and in Macau in June. Throughout most
of 2022 Macau’s tourism business was severely impacted by
pandemic. Visitation to Macau was severely disrupted during the
year, with total visitation of 5.7 million a reduction of 26.0% from
the number of visitors in 2021, and only 14.5% of the number of
visitor arrivals in 2019-the last pre-pandemic year.

In addition, on January 18, 2022, the Macau Legislative Assembly
published a draft bill entitted Amendment to Law No. 16/2001
to amend Macau’s gaming law (the “Gaming Law”). During
2022, most of the companies in Macau Market, especially
those in tourism and hotel industry, were adopting a wait-and-
see approach to monitor the Macau government’s Gaming
Law amendment and concession renewal process, and assess
the potential impact on Macau economy. The new gaming
concession was finally confirmed in December 2022.

Suffered from the threats from hotel and tourism industry
and gaming industry in Macau economy, the demand for
advertisement was severely affected, and the Group recorded
a decrease in the total revenue by approximately 43.3% to
approximately HK$34,645,000 and a decrease in net profit by
approximately 52.7% to approximately HK$10,030,000.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Around the end of 2022, Macau and Mainland travel restrictions
were materially relaxed. Current regulations permit visitors from
the Mainland, Hong Kong and Taiwan to visit Macau without
proof of COVID-19 testing. Visitors from other areas are currently
permitted with proof of negative nucleic acid test or rapid antigen
test within 48 hours. All quarantine requirements have been
suspended. In recent months, Macau has experienced the
gradual resumption of tourists’ arrival. January 2023 visitation
increased by 101.3% from the previous year to 1.4 million. The
Group will remain resilient and is cautiously optimistic of our
business.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our Directors, our dedicated management and staff for
their wavering support and commitment. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the continuing support and trust of our
shareholders, business partners, readers and customers. We
hope to join hands with each other to achieve improvements and
delivery success continuously.

Lui Man Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$34,645,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing an decrease of approximately 43.3% from
approximately HK$61,128,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. The Group recorded total gross profit of approximately
HK$24,112,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing an decrease of approximately 40.0% from
approximately HK$40,171,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$10,104,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 compared to the loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$21,531,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Profit per share of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$2.00 cents. The Directors do not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) sales and distribution of
publications, and the sales of print and online advertising spaces
and provision of advertising design and related production
services, (i) sales of billboard advertising spaces and provision
of advertisement sourcing agency services, and (i) promotion of
products and services by organizing exhibitions and shows.

Publications and Advertising Business

During the year, the Group owned and published six publications,
including Exmoo News, Travel Macao, Motoz Trader, Motoz
Trader (Free), Shopping Monthly (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine),
and Shopping Monthly (Free) (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

The publications of the Group cover readership of different
market segments and age groups by focusing on different areas
of interests in lifestyle, including automotive, beauty and fashion,
property, dining and electronic products.

o Exmoo News is a Chinese-language daily newspaper
(published every Monday to Friday) published in Macau
which has a wide range of readership by covering different
areas including Macau daily local news as well as Hong
Kong, the PRC and international news, finance and
economy, entertainment, sports, fashion and lifestyle,
cultural knowledge, etc. As at the date of this annual report,
the distribution points of Exmoo News in Macau covering
commercial buildings, luxury apartments, banks, airport
and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk, food centre, car parks,
universities and governmental offices, etc. and Exmoo News
is one of the publications with highest circulation and widest
coverage in Macau.

° Travel Macao is a Chinese-language travel leisure
fortnightly magazine (published alternate Friday) published
in Macau which provides comprehensive information to
readers relating to travel, dining, shopping, culture and
entertainment in Macau. It is distributed in major terminals in
Hong Kong and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau.
In addition to the printed magazine distributed in Macau and
Hong Kong, Travel Macau also provides website version,
digital social media platforms such as Facebook page and
WeChat platform to readers.

° Motoz Trader is a fortnightly magazine that focuses on new
car models, second-hand car market and properties while
also provides lifestyle information including dinning, fashion
and beauty.

° Motoz Trader (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Motoz Trader.

° Shopping Monthly is a fortnightly magazine and focuses on
updated information on consumer products.

° Shopping Monthly (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that
is extracted from Shopping Monthly.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue generated
from the publications and advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$18,780,000, decreased from approximately
HK$29,953,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outdoor Advertising Business

The Group has been diversifying its revenue stream by developing
the billboard advertising business (the “Billboard Advertising
Business”). During the year, the Group cooperated with certain
business partners and entered into continuing contracts for usage
of the advertisement spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai,
namely Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge (“HZMB”) Macau
Section Passenger Clearance Building for a term of 65 months
from 1 January 2020; and Zhuhai Hengqin Passenger Clearance
Building for a term of one year till 31 August 2022, and further
extended till 28 February 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue
generated from the outdoor advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$14,758,000 decreased from approximately
HK$28,940,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Exhibition and Trade Show Business and Related
Services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue generated
from the exhibition and trade show business and related services
amounted to approximately HK$1,107,000, decreased from
approximately HK$2,235,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2023, the Group will pay close attention to
the uncertainties in the economic environment, and stay alert to
formulate strategies to pursue steady development and strive for
generous returns to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Total revenue decreased by approximately 43.3% from
approximately HK$61,128,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$34,645,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. It was mainly due to the reduced demand of
advertisement in Macau market. The revenue generated from
publications and advertising business decreased to approximately
HK$18,780,000 as compared with approximately HK$29,953,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The revenue generated from outdoor advertising business
decreased to approximately HK$14,758,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared with approximately
HK$28,940,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The revenue of the Group contributed from the exhibition
and trade show business and related services, amounted to
approximately HK$1,107,000 or 3.2% of the total revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of sales of the
publications and advertising business and exhibition and trade
show business and related services amounted to approximately
HK$9,549,000 or 90.6% and approximately HK$984,000 or
9.4%, respectively of the total cost of sales.

Gross Profit

Total gross profit decreased by approximately 40.0% from
approximately HK$40,171,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$24,112,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease in the gross profit was mainly due
to the shrinkage of publications and advertising business and
outdoor advertising business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income

Other income increased by approximately HK$1,967,000 from
approximately HK$239,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$2,206,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. The increase was mainly attributable to the one-
off nature of subsidies granted under the Employment Support
Scheme by The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government and incentive subsidy for technology modernisation
by the Government Information Bureaus of The Macau Special
Administrative Region Government in 2022, while no such
subsidies granted in 2021.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 17.0% from approximately HK$14,922,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$12,380,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,064,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022, compared
to approximately HK$3,279,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Group was approximately HK$Nil for
the year ended 31 December 2022, compared to approximately
HK$1,655,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$10,104,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The share capital of
the Company only comprises ordinary shares.

RBES MBERRERER

REZE2022F12A31BILFE © AEBRER
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As at 31 December

A12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHBT FHET
Current assets mENEE 50,241 35,609
Current liabilities REAE 32,134 35,859
Current ratio VS 1.6 1.0

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately 1.6 times as compared to approximately 1.0 times
as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$1,908,000 (2021: approximately
HK$10,949,000).

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings
over shareholders’ fund, was approximately 38% as at 31
December 2022 (2021: 144%).

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The trade receivables increased from approximately
HK$14,712,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
HK$33,997,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
trade receivable turnover days increased from approximately 88
days for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
358 days for the year ended 31 December 2022. All outstanding
trade receivable balances are reviewed by the Group’s sales
and marketing department on a monthly basis to ensure that
any overdue receivable is promptly monitored and appropriate
collection actions are taken.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluation of the financial conditions
of its clients. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

Significant Investments Held

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no other
significant investment held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Joint Ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and joint ventures.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material pledge of
assets.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Information on Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the employee headcount (not including
Directors) of the Group was 17 (2021: 27) and the total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2022, amounted to approximately HK$7,171,000
(2021: approximately HK$7,299,000).

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice. In order to attract and
retain valuable employees, the Group reviews the performance
of its employees annually and such review results will be taken
into account while having the annual salary review and promotion
appraisal. In addition to a basic salary, bonuses would be paid
to staff with reference to the financial performance of the Group.
The Group would also provide trainings or seminars relating to
publication business and offer options that may be granted to
the employees under the share option scheme. The Group pays
commission to its sales and marketing staff which is calculated
based on an agreed percentage of sharing specified in their
respective contracts in accordance of the total monthly sales
solicited by such staff which is arrived at mutual agreement
between the Company and the respective staff.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

i) After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across the world. It has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and may impact the Group’s operations and
financial position. The Group has been closely monitoring
the impact from COVID-19 on the Group’s businesses and
has commenced to put in place various measures.

Based on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in
the financial and operating position of the Group up to the
date of this report. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and perform further
assessment of its impact and take relevant measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 13 March 2023, Silverbricks Securities Company Limited
as the placing agent (the “Placing Agent”) and the Company
entered into a placing agreement (the “2023 Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company proposes to
offer for subscription and the Placing Agent has agreed to
procure not less than six placees on a best effort basis to
subscribe for up to 103,680,000 placing shares (the “New
Placing Shares”) at a price of not less than HK$0.14 per
New Placing Share. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 13 March 2023 and 14
March 2023.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEZEEFET

DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, aged 42, was appointed as executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Hung has over
10 years of experience in media and advertisement industries.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism and
Communication from Chu Hai University in 2005.

Mr. Hung was appointed as a deputy managing director of Macau
Federal Commercial Association of Convention & Exhibition
Industry in September 2019 until 2021. He served as a media
production director of Central — Companhia de Communicacao
International, LDA, a company incorporated in Macau, which
is principally engaged in media, advertisement and exhibition
business from April 2019 to September 2019. He served as a
business development director of Pentalker Studio Publication
Co., Ltd., which is a book publisher providing cultural and travel
information in Macau from July 2016 to April 2019. He also
served as a deputy editor-in-chief of “NEW GEN. Monthly” of New
Generation Culture Association from June 2017 to July 2018. He
was also an editor in chief of Central International Communication
Co, Ltd, which is principally engaged in media, advertisement
and exhibition business from June 2011 to July 2016. Mr.
Hung served as an editor of Wide Connection Limited (being a
subsidiary of New Media Group Holdings Limited, now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 708), which was principally
engaged in magazine publishing, from April 2010 to June 2011.
He also served as an editor in chief of Prefix Publication Limited,
which is a book publisher providing travel, leisure, lifestyle and
cultural information in Hong Kong from March 2009 to April 2010.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 41, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Lui is also
the executive director of Imperium Financial Group Limited (a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
8029). Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in business
studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004
and obtained a Master of Commerce degree from Macquarie
University in 2005. Mr. Lui has over 10 years of experience in
securities and financial institutions. He is experienced in managing
listed companies in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 16 October 2019.
Ms. Wong possesses over 25 years of experience in finance,
accounting and company secretarial services experience in Hong
Kong. She obtained a master degree of arts in parent education
and a professional diploma in guidance and counselling from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a postgraduate diploma in
early childhood education from The Hong Kong Baptist University
and a bachelor degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong is currently the group financial controller of RNP
Jewelry Design Limited, which engages in the trading and
manufacturing of jewelry products, since March 2015. Ms. Wong
is responsible for corporate accounting, finance and corporate
secretarial matters. Ms. Wong worked in H.C. Wong & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), responsible for providing
corporate secretarial services from August 2007 to March 2015,
with her last positions as senior manager. She served as an
accounting officer Il of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region from April 1997 to May 2007. She also
served as an accounting manager of Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from September 1996 to April 1997 and a
staff accountant at Ernst & Young from August 1994 to August
1996.

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group since 16
October 2019. Mr. Wong has over 10 years of experience
in management and business operation. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and obtained a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr. Wong is currently the chief executive
officer of YOOV Internet Technology Limited (“YOOV”), which
specialize in providing cloud-based enterprise resource planning
(ERP) solutions to small and medium-sized enterprises (SME),
since January 2016. Prior to the formation of YOOV, Mr. Wong
operated a number of English learning centres in Hong Kong
from December 2012 to December 2016. He also served as
an operations manager of Nan Fung Resources Limited from
March 2012 to November 2012. He worked in the Real Estate
Asia Division of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Hong Kong branch) from
July 2007 to March 2011 with his last position as real estate
relationship manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEZEEFET

Mr. Lee Man Yeung, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr.
Lee has over 13 years of experience in business management
in the construction industry. Mr. Lee obtained a certificate in
Business Administration and a diploma in Business Management
(Banking & Finance) from Holmesglen Institute of TAFE in
Melbourne, Australia in May 1999 and August 2000 respectively.
Mr. Lee worked at Hang Tat Engineering Company Limited as a
project manager from 2003 to 2010. He was the business owner
of APEX Construction & Development Limited from September
2008 to May 2015. He is the founder and has been a director of
Le Point Management Company Limited, a company principally
engaged in the business of management of restaurants and
hospitality group in China since January 2015. Mr. Lee was an
independent non-executive director of Pak Wing Group (Holdings)
Limited (currently known as China Hongbao Holding Limited)
(a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
8316) from September 2018 to February 2021. He is also an
engineering consultant of Chilego Engineering Co., Limited since
December 2010.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
Report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risk and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report respectively. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s business
operation made continuous effort on minimizing damage to
the environment and ensuring employees’ well-being. No non-
compliance in relation to environmental and social aspects was
recorded. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted in raised
concerns on key material issues, which include (i) employee
health and safety, (i) labour standards, (i) intellectual property
(“IP”) rights, (iv) customer data protection and (v) anti-corruption.
These aspects had already been managed by the Group and
the Group will continue to keep close communication with
its stakeholders for advancing its environmental, social and
governance management.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Group covering the same period
are set out in the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 168 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to the shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 57.7% of the total sales for the year ended 31
December 2022 and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 18.5%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 60.4%
of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 31.3%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company or any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip

Mr. Lee Man Yeung

In accordance with Article 84(1), three directors will retire at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out
on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company under which their term of
appointment is three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme” in this report and Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there is no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management,
having regard to market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible participants,
details of the scheme is set out in section “Share Option
Scheme” in this report and Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 February 2015, under which the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Share Option Scheme will expire on 16 February 2025.
For further details, please refer to Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 16 October 2019, all of the share options granted have
been cancelled.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective close
associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company

EERERBRRRGFXBHERS

AEFEMA > MEEF - AR AIERBRRER
EXRANETHEAREEMERAREXKE
PR R A BE R R R RS S s - TR
RS AT BEE AR A R A TR A B 2 RfF 2
EREAMAFISER o

EERIFETBAERAQATEM
EMRERANKRSD - HERD R EER
MERR, KRR

MR2022F12A31H » EFERETETHRAERAK
NESHEEAEEEE (E&R BB AR ES71
ERFRHEKRO([#FHRBE KRS ])FEXVED)
WAk - RO REREBEFEEREESR
HIEIRBIEXVEBETRSD BEHNE AR AKX
BRXAMER AR (BIEREREES K
B0 A BRSO E (ESR BB B e ook
B HIREBEEBESF R ERHIEISMFERAR
AFEZELMARENER AR - HIRE
GEM MR AIES.46E5.6716BME AN T &
BT ROARIAT ¢

(A) RAERFRMDAER

Approximate
percentage of
issued Share

Capital of

Name of Director Capacity Interest in Shares the Company
ERARE BT

EEpR 14 REROHNERZ REASNESHL
Mr. Lui Man Wah Interests in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 320,023,300 (L) 61.73%

BXERLE A E s (M)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Notes:

1. Mr. Lui Man Wah is the ultimate beneficial owner of these
Shares, of which Shares is directly held by Source Creation
International Limited (“Source Creation”). The entire issued share
capital of Source Creation are wholly owned by Mr. Lui Man
Wah.

2. Duplication occurs in respect of the interests held by Mr. Lui
Man Wah and Source Creation which they represented the same
block of Shares.

3. As at 31 December 2022, the Company has 518,400,000
Shares in issue.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.
(B) Interests in Share Options of the Company

Details of the particulars of interests (all being personal
interests) in share options held during the year ended
31 December 2022 by Directors (and/or their respective
associate(s)) to subscribe for Shares of the Company
granted/exercisable under the share option scheme of
the Company are disclosed in the section “Share Option
Scheme” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors nor chief executives had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or were otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have the following
interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

FERREEMALREARTREG KR
MEROHWERR, KR

R2022F12H318  WEEMA - T AT
(RRRIESHETEZTHRABRINEA IHER
VESK & 1B A IR AR B B0 S AR B AR 1D P IR 1%
FHEREEEMIEXVERE2RID RBAME AR
A REE R AT - AR ESN AR RIRIEE 5 &
BB E36ETFEMELMM TAEZE R,
AR

Long positions in the Shares or Underlying Shares RO EBRGHNEE
Approximate

Number of  percentage of

Shares or  shareholding
Name Nature of interest Underlying Shares interests  Note
ne/ 28 BiME RAOSEBRAHE RESOEIL M
Source Creation International Limited Beneficial owner 320,023,300 (L) 61.73% 1
BIREIR B R AR ExBEBA
Note: BisE -

1. As at 31 December 2022, the Company has 518,400,000 shares in
issues.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other persons who had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31
December 2022.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction which is subject to the disclosure
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2022, as notified by the Company’s
compliance adviser, Lego Corporate Finance Limited (“Lego”),
neither Lego nor any of its directors, employees or close
associates had any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe
for such securities) or otherwise in relation to the Company which
is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period
have been audited by McM will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution to re-appoint McM and to authorize
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LUI MAN WAH

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices in order to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Codes”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
During the year, the Company had been in compliance with the
CG Codes as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the provision detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same person. The Company currently
has no CEO. All duties of CEO are shared among the executive
Directors, the Board believes that the present arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Directors, and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.

—E - _FFR

i"ﬁ'—‘-\Aiﬁm

TEERER

RABBAOETERKEFNCEELAER IR
PEHARRERD - AEIHERN  AARERMN
GEM_ET#R A s 15Fr s (b % E/asTRI([1 %
ERTADZRAIRSTAIGXIEAREB S 21
EERTH - RER - AR —HEFTGEME
MR BMER15FTE 2 S EEAFR] - T XFF
i 2 AESTBR A

STRMEX FBA2MGERE - EFETBAAE (1T
e )nAaecETRY B TEHR— AE
T o ARBE B AL EITHAREL - ITHRARAPT
ﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%’%%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ
RESARBAEEHL FEERK - Iﬁ%lﬁ
RIRBEARBUELRENTAERAR
HBIR -

ARRBEERTELEERTRIARIT X
ERKE  HEEEER  WETRRMKRE
ETERSOHIE -

ESETRERENTATR

KRRERMN —EESHETEFIINITAEST
B HEFTBENGEM ETREIE5.48%5.67
KSR ESETERRINETEEE
Al - KAE2BEREHIBTERNE  2BES
ﬁﬂﬁ@imwimﬂmatifaL*“$
ETESFRXINAEEEREREITRSFE -

R RERE
EERSRABEREEARRESFRERABE

HiE > ARERTREMSIRZENEETHR
JNEERSABEETRBRZME -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF

29



30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the
responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily operation
and day-to-day management of the Group as well as the
implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Director and management of the Group.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions objectively
and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) as named
below. An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles
and functions is posted on GEM’s website and the Company’s
website from time to time.

Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip

Mr. Lee Man Yeung

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section of this Annual Report.
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In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Ms. Wong Chi Ling has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) between members of the
Board.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The Board
delegates day to-day operations of the Group to management
while reserving certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval
and monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and
business plans; and overseeing and evaluating the performance
of the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also
set up to ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and
functions of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference
of the relevant committees.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Codes, the Company has adopted diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its approach to
achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board,
committees and shareholders meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2022:

ARAREBEZTEZTEMEELERE -
BEETRRMER - Fik - ERBEESR
BEER - e - MBRRBEH o RRF]TR
BIARREEESFEBEALART2ERNA
ARE RBERAEHENEBERREASBRE
FETRNEZ RELNERME

EERERNHERBR

TREATEELEFEREE2022F12831H (HEF
BEEETHNESTSRZECSHURBEK
2B -

Corporate
Governance
and Risk

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management General
Board  Committee = Committee Committee =~ Committee =~ Meeting
E -
RRER
Exg ENZRE REZEY FHzEES ZEg® KRK®
Executive Director BITEE
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RERREEE 6/6 N/ATNEA N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ATNE A 1/1

Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lui Man Wah ANELYE 6/6 N/ATNE

Independent non-executive BYEHTEE

Directors
Ms. Wong Chi Ling BTRIL 6/6 4/4
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip HERRHE 6/6 4/4
Mr. Lee Man Yeung PFESE 6/6 4/4

11 11 11 11

11 11 11 11
11 11 11 il
11 11 il 11
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The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
that included executive Directors, non-executive Director and
INED presented in person or through electronic means of
communication regularly at least four time every year. During
regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Group, monitored financial
performances and reviewed the financial results, as well as
discussed and decided on other significant matters. The Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company'’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion from the Board
meetings, Board committees met on other occasions during
which matter relating to their respective terms of reference
was discussed. The Board committee members would receive
notice, agenda and documents to be tabled for consideration in
advance of each meeting in accordance with the CG Codes and
respective terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
THE DIRECTORS

The executive Director has entered into an executive Director’s
service agreement with the Company and each of the non-
executive Director and INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with specific terms with the Company with an initial
term of three years, subject to renewal by the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at the meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the INEDs remain
independent.

DIRECTORS’ PARTICIPATION IN CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Codes on continuous
professional development:
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Corporate Governance/
updates on Laws, Rules
& Regulations

EER BEEAE -

RAIRER
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RRRfEEAE v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lui Man Wah AXERLE v
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Ms. Wong Chi Ling =g oaun v
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip =EERLA v
Mr. Lee Man Yeung $X/$§'E$ v

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and corporate governance & risk management committee
(“CGRM Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
such Board committees are available on GEM’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resource to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee
are set out in “Board Composition”.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C.3.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Ms. Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ling Yan
Philip and Mr. Lee Man Yeung have appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, four meetings of
the Audit Committee were held by the committee to review
the quarterly, half yearly and the annual results. The principal
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing of the
financial results of the Group, the accounting principles, the
scope of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and
its independence, and be responsible for all the matters relating
to the continuing connected transaction of the Company. The
Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments adopted
by the Group and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s
quarterly, interim and annual reports comply with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
(Chairman), Mr. Lui Man Wah, Ms. Wong Chi Ling and Mr. Lee
Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the structure
and policy of remuneration of the Group and approve the
remuneration package of Directors. The emoluments of the
Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
according to the Directors’ respective responsibilities, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man
Wah (Chairman), Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
and Mr. Lee Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Board Diversity Policy, the Policy for the nomination of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on nomination,
rotation and re-appointment of Directors, and assessing the
independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size,
composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’
nomination related matters, make recommendations to the Board
on the proposal of reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting held during the year are set out
in Directors’ Attendance at Board and General Meetings section
above.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
criteria for selection and process of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the nomination policy, in assessing and selecting
a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be considered
including but not limited to the following:

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

- Commitment to attending the meetings and participating in
relevant training and other board associated activities;

- Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. ldentify and evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the proposal of
appointment or re-appointment of Director; and

2. Recommend the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate as a Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in terms of skills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge,
culture, age and gender. The main objective of the policy is to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
In accordance with the board diversity policy, a truly diverse
Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of the Directors. These differences will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
All Board appointments will be based on merit while considering
diversity (including gender diversity).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee (the “CGRM Committee”) Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference. The Corporate
Governance Committee was renamed as Corporate Governance
& Risk Management Committee on 6 January 2016 to add in
risk management functions. As at the date of this annual report,
the CGRM Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman),
Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip and Mr. Lee Man
Yeung.

The primary functions of the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee include, among others, reviewing and
making recommendation to the Board in respect of the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board, contained in
any constitutional documents of the Group, or imposed by the
GEM Listing Rules, other applicable laws, regulations, rules and
codes, and ensuring that appropriate monitoring systems are
in place to ensure compliance with the relevant internal control
systems, processes and policies, oversee the effectiveness
of the procedures of the internal control system of the Group,
monitoring the implementation of the Group’s plan to maintain
high compliance with own risk management standards, providing
guideline to the management on risk management and to set
up procedures to identify, assessing and managing material risk
factors, and ensuring the management discharge its responsibility
in establishing an effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the
CGRM Committee was held to review the Group’s corporate
governance practice and oversee of the Company’s compliance
with the CG codes, to review and discuss about the internal
control procedures and finding of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor, McM, in respect of the audit and non-audit services
are as follows:

BB AT B

ENLZBECRARES MMATINE AT R T
VA B 28 B SN BE A% SR AM P A 1T B (E 7] SR AR L
B BRARFERBAERTEUAREEL
EABEERTHNEE -

HZE2022F12A31BILFE - MBEZNIEE
RN,/ EAEEMERENERNT

2022
20224
HK$’000
FHET

Audit services EZPRTE

800

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the
member(s) of senior management of the Group (excluding the
Directors of the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2022
by band is as follows:

B AREEE M

BIESFANE X EB.1.51K - REBE £20224F
12A31B I FERBEEZ NEREEREBAS
(RRARIESBRINBIE BT

Number of
Remuneration individual(s)
i A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T 4
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board and the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
committee of the Company are acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Policies have been designed for
monitoring the regulations and laws compliance of the Company
and to advise on the risks involved in major decisions that need
to be reviews by the Board and solutions to the major risks.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are implemented.
The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group. The
Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee of the
Company provides independent review on effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. The Board is
responsible for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.
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Risk Management
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In currant year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group does not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2022 and
2021.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.
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The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 24% (2021: 46%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 81% (2021: 77%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest 5 customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would
not result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Board, through the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2022 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance functions, is of the
view that the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are considered as effective and
adequate.

Internal Audit

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such department
as and when it thinks necessary.

Inside Information

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure
policy aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and
senior management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant
to applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
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The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
by publication of the announcement to the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable
the public to access the latest information of the Group, unless
such information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.
The management has notified all employees to comply with the
disclosure policy. Briefing and training on the implementation of
the policy have been provided to Directors, officers and senior
management of the Group. The Board emphasizes that only the
authorised representatives registered in the Stock Exchange are
authorised to speak on behalf of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Group in relation
to their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

Mr. Yu Ngai confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

Mr. Yu Ngai is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Group provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Right to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company, any one or more
member(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expense incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.
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SREABE

Contact information of the Company is set out as
follows:

Principle Office: Workshop A, 14th Floor, V Ga Building 532, Castle
Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3643 0799

Facsimile: (852) 3622 1457

E-mail: info@wintogroup.hk

Company website: www.wintogroup.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the
Company’s Board. Appropriate members of the Board and
senior management are ready to respond to enquiries from
Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents of the
Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and relevant laws
and regulations. The Board shall take into account the factors,
including but not limited to:

- Actual and expected financial performance;
- Cash flow situation;
- The Group’s business and operations; and

- Economic conditions and other factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
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MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winto
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to
167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of goodwill
2. Valuation of trade and other receivables
Valuation of goodwiill

We identified impairment of goodwill arising from the acquisition
of to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”) as a key audit matter, as
the amount is quantitatively significant to the Group’s financial
position and the valuation requires an estimation of the value in
use of the business. The estimation of the value in use is subject
to significant management estimates, in respect of the discount
rate, terminal rate and growth rates. No impairment loss was
recognised during the year.

Details relating to the assessment of impairment of goodwill is set
out in notes 3, 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of goodwill (Continued)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of the
goodwill arising from the acquisition of TBC included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation model
and obtaining evidence to support the estimated cash
flow forecast underlying the value in use prepared by
management;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
inputs such as the terminal rate and growth rates used in
the model by comparing the management’s expectations
against our understanding of the current market
circumstances; and

- Critically challenging the reasonableness of the discount
rate adopted by management in discounting the cash flow
forecast with reference to available market data.

Valuation of trade and other receivables

We identified the valuation of trade and other receivables as a key
audit matter as the amounts are significant and the determination
of expected credit loss (“ECL”) requires significant management
judgements.

In respect of the Group’s trade receivables, the Group uses
provision matrix to calculate the ECL. The provision rates are
based on debtor’s aging consisting of debtors with common
credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

In respect of other receivables, the Group assesses the expected
credit loss individually by estimation based on historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of trade and other receivables (Continued)

Based on the result of the foregoing, the management has
recognised impairment losses on trade and other receivables of
HK$3,899,000. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of the Group’s trade and other receivables, net of allowance for
credit loss, was HK$40,811,000.

Details relating to the Group’s trade and other receivables are
set out in notes 3, 4, 20 and 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of trade and
other receivables included:

i Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade and other receivables;

- Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the provision matrix, including trade receivables
ageing analysis as at 31 December 2022, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis with
the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices, settlement
records and other supporting documents;

= Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2022, including their identification of
credit impaired trade receivables, the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of the remaining trade debtors
into different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category in the
provision matrix (with reference to historical default rates
and forward-looking information);

- In respect of other receivables, testing the integrity
of information used by management’s assessment
and assessing the reasonableness of management’s
assessment as at 31 December 2022;

- Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on other receivables as at
31 December 2022; and

- Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables in notes 20 and
33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’ s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company are responsible in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McM (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560
24/F., Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeREREMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FExT FHT
Revenue W 5 34,645 61,128
Cost of sales HE KA (10,533) (20,957)
Gross profit EF 24,112 40,171
Other income E A 7 2,206 239
Other gains or (losses), net H iz sk (B 18))F58 8 2,055 573
Operating expenses RIS (12,380) (14,922)
Impairment loss (recognised)/reversed FEEA{Z EEIBE AT
under the expected credit loss B (fER), B EHRE
model E518 (3,899) 69
Finance costs BbE KA 9 (2,064) (3,279)
Profit before tax BR 75t Al A A 10 10,030 22,851
Income tax expense FriSfiF 11 - (1,655)
Profit and total comprehensive FRNBFR
income for the year 2HEHWKEEEE 10,030 21,196
Profit for the year EEFREF -
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S YNEIE 2PN 10,104 21,531
- Non-controlling interests - IRV R (74) (335)
10,030 21,196
Total comprehensive income/ EEFER2EkE(BX)
(expense) for the year #EE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHEA A 10,104 21,531
Non-controlling interests eI R (74) (335)
10,030 21,196
Earnings per share BREF
- Basic (HK cents) - EARGEL) 14 2.00 4.98
— Diluted (HK cents) - #E 0Bl 14 N/AT i N/A i F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB AR R &R

At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
N FBT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BWEEAE 16 1,410 1,958
Goodwill EES 17 1,399 1,399
Intangible assets mEAE 18 330 330
Contract costs BRI A 21 591 828
Other deposits Htize 20 9,889 9,655
13,619 14,170
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables and other B 5 & E A W RIE K
deposits Htize 20 40,811 17,306
Contract costs B KA 21 6,097 6,526
Contract assets BHEE 25 - 276
Amount due from a shareholder JE U — 4 B R FkIE 28 1,379 539
Amount due from a non-controlling e — B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary FEFZERR IR R FRIE 28 46 13
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR IR E 23 1,908 10,949
50,241 35,609
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables 85 RHEMEMNFIR 24 19,121 12,355
Contract liabilities aHERE 25 856 1,651
Loan from a substantial shareholder FEREER 26 12,157 20,148
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 - 50
Tax payables FET I8 - 1,655
32,134 35,859
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BB FH 18,107 (250)
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERABAEE 31,726 13,920

—E - _FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BB AR O &R

At 31 December 2022 72022412 531 H

2022 2021

20224 20214

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5T FExT FHT

Net assets FEE 31,726 13,920
Capital and reserves EXRRHE

Share capital & A 29 10,368 8,640

Reserves G 21,521 5,369

Total capital deficiency AATHEEANELER

attributable to owners of &5 4 48 KR

the Company 31,889 14,009

Non-controlling interests IR A (163) (89)

Total equity REBEKE 31,726 13,920

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 167 were 56 B & £ 167 B WA A B SRR M 202343
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  A31E K EE @ EMREN I HATESE

31 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: REEE -
Hung Yuen Kin Lui Man Wah
REEf BXE
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated K& Mf M sE A 4R A A SRR AR 2B D ©
financial statements.

58 WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EATREAEL
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
2R
BE  RORE  AERE  EARE  2HER ) BE  mpeg
(Note (e ~ (Note (o))
(e (Wsko)
At 1 January 2021 R=%=-f-A-8 8,640 04,331 49 7501 (118,13 (752 26 (1,276)
Total comprehensive income/ FreEbE/ (AR
(expenses) for the year et - - = = 21,531 21,531 (335 21,19
At 31 December 2021 and R-B=-F
1 January 2022 TZR=t-Rk
ZEZZE-f-H 8,640 94,331 49 7,591 (96,602) 14,009 89 13920
Issuance of new shares by way NEERARTHR
of placing, net of issue costs NRBIHA 1,728 6,048 - - - 1,776 - 1,776
Total comprehensive income/ Ep2mbsE/ (%)
(expenses) for the year ] - - - - 10,104 10,104 (14 10030
At 31 December 2022 W-B-C
+zB=1-A 10368 100379 49 751 (649 31889 (163 31,72
Notes: BisE -

() In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial Code, the  (a)
Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau are required to transfer
a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits to a statutory reserve
until that reserve equals 50% of the nominal value of their capital. The
statutory reserve may not be distributed in the form of cash dividends
or otherwise, during the life of the company.

(b)  Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from  (b)
a substantial shareholder (note 26) arising from the loan from a
substantial shareholder. It is the difference between the imputed
interest calculated by the market interest rate at the loan inception date

and the nominal interest rate charged by the substantial shareholder.

e B FI 8 B B IR RIKER A RE I 2
5 -
—Eo g EREE (2R) SRAF

RIBRPIREEHMEIT7IR - AR R ERPIEMA
S A RIASFE AN R D 26% B EIETE
@ EERESREAEENS% - EAFRF
BHRE - ZERBTISUARSKRSIEMTRS
K e

ERRERIERRERELNREZERFOE
& (M15E26) ° WIDRE LS BIRmIGHM Rt E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HREREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KeEEE
Profit before tax 7t B 42 ) 10,030 22,851
Adjustments for: AR TEE -
Interest income FEUA (234) (239)
Finance costs BB 2,064 3,279
Depreciation of property, M - BN ERETE
plant and equipment 548 618
Amortisation of contract costs BRI P B 237 236
Gain on debt modifications BEREE Wi (2,055) (573)
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) EHEEBEEXTE
under expected credit loss model R (BE) R R EEE 3,899 (69)
Operating cash flows before movementsin ~ ZBE S EBAIMLE LR RE
working capital 14,489 26,103
Increase in trade and other EHMEMEWZIERBERS
receivables and rental deposits # 0 (27,404) (9,159)
Decrease/(increase) in contract costs BHILAR L,/ (45 hn) 429 (712)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N EAh e B IR G AN 6,766 3,799
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets AHEERD, /(35 ) 276 (276)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (795) (1,333)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations REEK(FTA),/ EHEE (6,239) 18,422
Profits tax paid ERFIEE (1,655) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from in KEEE(FTA), B8RS FHE
operating activities (7,894) 18,422
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ [EE % - S L RE - (1,675)
Advance from a shareholder R R AN (840) (10)
Advance from a non-controlling —FEIM B A R EE IR AR R
shareholder of a subsidiary TR Ry BGR (33) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETBMARSFE (873) (1,685)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Interest paid EFIE - (700)
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMBER - (7,000)
Repayment of substantial shareholder loan ~ EE X ERERE K (8,000) (1,000)
Repayment of lease liability EEHEaE (50) (300)
Proceeds from issue of shares on placement, 37178 &%) FT{SEIHE -
net of issue costs HIBR TR A 7,776 =
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEMARESFE (274) (9,000)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRESEEYWORLD) 1Em
cash equivalents b2 (9,041) 7,737
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A1A1EMNBEEREESEEY 10,949 3,212
Cash and cash equivalents at M12B31EHNBREREESEEY
31 December 1,908 10,949

—E - _FFR

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

62

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office, and
head office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report. Its ultimate and immediate parent is Source
Creation International Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liabilities and owned
by Mr. Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”). Mr. Lui is a non-executive
director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
provision of exhibition and trade show and related services,
publication and advertising and outdoor advertising.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (HK$’000), which is same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2022 as mentioned
below. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the
Group’s financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 16
(March 2021)

Annual Improvements Project

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combinations
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective which may be relevant to the Company:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1 -
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 1 -
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement
2 — Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 8
— Definition of Accounting
Estimates

1 January 2023

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective (Continued)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 12— 1 January 2023
Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 16 = 1 January 2024
Lease Liability in a Sales
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKFRS 10 To be determined by the
and HKAS 28 — Sale or HKICPA
Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 1 January 2024
(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause.

FERFI B RN BREER
((EBUBHEER REBEFE
AITEBS R AR H BT (80
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EBREESR(20209F) 2024F1A1H
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RAHBEREENKE
BERXZBEHERZ

E 18

The directors anticipate that the application of these new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

—E - _FFR

ERSFTEE @)

REEE(E)

ERBIFIT - AR RS HHE A e a
Vﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%’%ﬁﬁ TR EARE

BFTAMEBRERT 2 -
EAKEXNERARRZBBENABERENAN
BENBE  #ZE - WA FAXMAESR
EYREEREEE -

BIENGIETE S Edie: Fad =2 SE ey

R AR5 - MBS RS R wﬁé
BB T LIS AR5 5 B B A
A EEE -

e Y

WERBRAWBEAR - X408
BORERAHETE - Mt EERA
SEPERNEE  AEBERBEIET R
BEAEENRBERAEER BRI EE
J7 IR B R TR S IR B R R
BN - BRARBHIRANBERELR
RIB TR ©

RUEE B R - U A B nl B B M P diE
BEREQTERER - HEATSERKIN

e EEMRBEEEXABLREERERA
ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ?i%f 7 RIRE
BERTERE12RAAEHRIME

SEERFE 195 R E @ F HER

H+E ;

B

o  HEWWEHNRMINLBHARE
[ 5T S DA B A7 32 A5 22 R B 15 W P
TABED LB R ESK
$Ii KRB B REE LT

HEERIFE25R [ AR D R AR 5K
D+E o &

s REBEUBREERNESHRIFHE
HENFERBEERRIELE %%l
DERFFLENEE(HHE
B) IR R E -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF

69



70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in its exhibition
and trade show contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in
terms of other relevant Standards, failing which it recognises
an asset for these costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue from the following major sources. The Group’s
revenue recognition policies on each of these revenue
sources are as follows:

(i)  Publications and advertising income

The Group generates advertising income from the
publications that are point and online media platform.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits when the advertisements are released
on the designated publications and online media
platform. Revenue from publications and advertising
recognised over time using the output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract.

The Group earns revenue from selling publications.
Revenue from sales of publications is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
magazines.

The Group generates advertising design and related
production services to its customers. Revenue from
provision of advertising design and related production
service is recognised over a period of time using the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value to the
customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised under contract (i.e.
when the designated publications transferred to the
customers).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Outdoor advertising income

The Group provides outdoor advertising spaces to
customers. The customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits when the advertisement is
displayed on the outdoor advertising spaces. Revenue
from outdoor advertising is recognised over time using
the output method.

The Group provides advertisement sourcing agency
services to its customers. Revenue from provision of
advertisement sourcing agency service is recognised
over a period of time under a straight-line method
and amortised over the period of the contract. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission on a net basis as an agent.

Exhibitions and trade show and related service
income

Revenue from provision of exhibitions and trade show
services is recognised over time using the output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments (including the initial direct costs),
and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge return over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “exchange reserve” (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is
a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of relevant income
vests immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period, while the remaining portion vests in
accordance with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group’s Macau subsidiaries are
covered by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit
would be determined and paid by the Macau government.
Contributions are generally made by both employees and
employers by paying a fixed amount on a monthly basis
to the Social Security Fund Contribution managed by the
Macau government.

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
share-based payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Advertising billboard 7 years
Leasehold improvements 33.33%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives and contract cost to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance with
applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have
not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of
the CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUS) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRSY/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

—E - _FFR

EXRETHEG@E

SRT A (E
ETHEE (&)
EHEENSBERRETE (B

& TR R BE B E o R A AR
AR A2 E RS (R AFE AR 2
Yzs )HE -

e EXEBEATUURBANRSRER
HERBEMHAENEREE &

s ANKFREEBHELNRDR
BEAXNEAE N REEREREN
S e

PEEMEREERRIZEAFESARS
B EEBREREEM RS LS
O VT HRAEMEEZR - MRAIKR
BXFEFER B IFR BT BB
BELERNEIREBAHMEANELEE
PrR R AR RE - BN E A TR
Ol 38 R H 2 E W s 2 5 Z AR E
MEZRAFEZE -

HEBA TR > SRMEEWD BRFEER

=

. IRWENTIE2ENAERRAAL
P

I St

o HEYIFHERE HAKXRRIFMER
B8 WHEAEBEFNNTHAER
EXNE#H M T AEEG — 3
ok

e HAB/UHEELRBBEAHFTA
MPTETA o

LN » 7SR B R] N R (B 45 T 7R 1 B 5
AR A EF AR M EE RS ED
TREE /TN FESARIETE - WE
SETDERRBE RS @ ERIER -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF

95



96

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

M

(i)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the
FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the other gain and losses line item.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on financial assets and contract assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, contract assets
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the
reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables without
significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

M

(i)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when (i) a trade receivable
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past

due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(iv)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the past-due status basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
loan receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognised its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognised the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due from a shareholder, amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, loan from
a substantial shareholder and bank overdrafts are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises the financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified
such that the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms after considering
qualitative factors (e.g. modifications of convertible
instruments such as extending the tenure, change in
exercise price of the underlying options). When the
contractual terms of financial liability are modified such that
the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liability derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid
or payable, including any liabilities assumed and derivative
components recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, at the point of modification,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities is
revised for directly attributable transaction costs and any
consideration paid to or received from the counterparty.
The effective interest rate is then adjusted to amortise
the difference between the revised carrying amount and
the expected cash flows over the life of the modified
instrument.”
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation,
cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(8) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related party transactions (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit, a suitable discount rate, terminal rate and
growth rates in order to calculate the present value. No
impairment loss on goodwill was recognised during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$1,399,000 (2021:
HK$1,399,000) after an impairment loss of HK$Nil (2021:
HKS$NIl) was recognised during the year.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on debtor’s aging as groupings of various debtors
with common credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable, and that is available without undue cost
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables that are credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

In respect of other receivables, the Group assesses the
expected credit losses individually by estimation based
on historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the relevant industry in which the debtors
operate, an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

The information about the Group’s trade and other
receivables and credit risk and impairment assessment
are disclosed in notes 20 and 33 respectively. As at 31
December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and other receivables and contract assets, net of allowance
for credit loss, was approximately HK$40,615,000
and HK$Nil (2021: HK$14,759,000 and HK$276,000)
respectively.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2
when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group as a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group as an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or services before that good or services is transferred to a
customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

REVENUE 5. W&
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHANREMAD
customers
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Provision of exhibition and trade show RERENRE 5REE KAHBE RS
and related services 1,107 2,235
Publications and advertising income T4 K B2 A 18,780 29,953
Outdoor advertising income PONEEWA 14,758 28,940
34,645 61,128
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 e AR B R
A point in time R 272 1,724
Overtime P By 34,373 59,404
34,645 61,128
Transaction allocated to the remaining performance PEHEEEFENZH TEBYNEEZX S
obligation for contract with customer
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AEBCEHBENHEHMELERF15RE
121 of HKFRS 15 to all its sale contracts such that the 121N EREE S AEREMGHES
Group does not disclose information about revenue that 8 BAEEMTEEERERTTRTE
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining HEERBERIE 2 WEER -

performance obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), being
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

1 Exhibition and trade show business and related
services

2 Publications and advertising business, including print
and online media advertising, sales of publications,
advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out below.

Segment revenues and results

For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. KEHIBE)
HE2022F K2021F12A31H IEFE -
RERTAEEHELEIEREERY
R DERRAGH 2 AEBARESHE
BEFT o
DEBN S R EE

HZE2022F12831A L FE

Exhibition
and trade Publications
show business and
and related advertising
services business Total
RERES
BEXEK L)
ST LS BEEER a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FEx FTET
Revenue Wi
Segment revenues D EB Mz 1,107 33,538 34,645
Inter-segment sales DEPFEIHE - - -
Revenue from external customers RBINPE P s 1,107 33,538 34,645
Segment profit ban= Yl 123 23,989 24,112
Other income Hapdg A 2,206
Other gains or (losses), net Hinlzssk (B518) F 58 2,055
Operating expenses RERY (12,380)
Impairment loss recognised under BHEEEBEAT
the expected credit loss model BERRABEEE (3,899)
Finance costs BB AR (2,064)
Profit before tax B 258 A g A 10,030
Income tax expense PTSHiA X -
Profit for the year FRR A 10,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

R 2B ()

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

P L6 YSES A Y

HE2021FE12A31R ILEE

Exhibition
and trade Publications
show business and
and related advertising
services business Total
RELES
REXEY F¥ &
K AB 8 AR 7% EEEB =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT TAT
Revenue &
Segment revenues o E 2,235 58,893 61,128
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - = -
Revenue from external customers REINDEF B 2,235 58,893 61,128
Segment profit PaR iyl 1,491 38,680 40,171
Other income H A 239
Other gains or (losses), net Hindzssk (B598))% 573
Operating expenses R (14,922)
Impairment loss reversed under RHREEBEBREXT
expected credit loss model DR REEE 69
Finance costs BEKA (8,279)
Profit before tax B 250 A1 A1 22,851
Income tax expense FTSHiFX (1,655)
Profit for the year FREH 21,196
The accounting policies of the operating segments are KED BB TR B4R & I S R 5T

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
profit represents the profit earned from each segment
without allocation of other income, operating expenses,
other gains or losses, impairment loss reversed/recognised
under expected credit loss model and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the Group’s management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of unallocated bank

ReEn

B (80

THEEREE

DEEEREMAB AR NEREE R
FEE TEERSMBRITEBKRLIRES A

balances and cash and other corporate assets. Segment &E@ﬁ%ﬁ% ’\*BE\TT@TE“/\’“*
liabilities include provisions and trade and other payables REE - GNBGEREERE
attributable to the activities of the individual segments,
contract liabilities and lease liabilities.
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and T REERREEDHEDNAEE
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. BERBERND
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Segment assets PHEE
Exhibition and trade show business RENEFREE
and related services N AR RS 2,068 3,919
Publications and advertising business T4 &2 & & 27 53,061 43,903
Total segment assets DEHEEETE 55,129 47,822
Bank balances and cash IRITAEHR AR S 213 401
Unallocated assets RO EE 8,518 1,556
Consolidated assets EBE 63,860 49,779
Segment liabilities PEEME
Exhibition and trade show business RELREIREXT
and related services N A8 AR % 368 1,508
Publications and advertising business T & & & %75 10,403 11,942
Total segment liabilities DEPBEERE 10,771 13,450
Unallocated liabilities RoBLBE 21,363 22,409
Consolidated liabilities meafk 32,134 35,859

—E - _FFR
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.

Information about the Group’s revenue for operations is
from external customers presented based on location of
delivery destination of the goods and place of services
rendered.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

AEEEB IR EBRAEE -

FRAASERBI TP EBHUAE R
THIREE mE AT B Byt s iR g AR F5 e ith
T2 -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIMEEF B K FREBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022%F 20214F 20225 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET FHET THET FH&T

Guangdong — Hong Kong 27 8 A /&
— Macau Greater Bay

Area 34,645 61,128 13,619 14,170

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total
sales of the corresponding years of the Group is as follows:

PHEEFE I AEBEEREBBI0%H
ERPWZFMT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Customer A (Note a)' ZPEA(MFEa) 6,409 N/AZ 3 FA
Customer B (Note a)! ZFB(KMEa) 5,796 N/AT3E B
Customer C (Note a)? EPC(Kizka)? N/ATER 11,383
Customer D (Note a)? ZFD(Mta)? N/ATiE A 10,000

Notes:

U The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the last year.

2 The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the current year.

(@) Revenue from the above customers is arising from publications
and advertising business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

OTHER INCOME 7. HA
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income on finance lease B E 1 & EUGRIRE R F B A

receivables (note 22) (FtzE22) - 10
Interest income on non-current deposits  FEi7 &z & B FI B U A (i 7£20)

(note 20) 234 209
Government grants (Note) AT #8 Bh (BT 5%) 1,466 n
Sundry income MIRWA 506 =

2,206 239

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately HK$208,000
related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong SAR Government. The remaining recognised government
grants of approximately HK$1,258,000 related to an incentive
subsidy for technology modernisation by the Government
Information Bureaus of the Macau SAR. Government grants
were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant
granting criteria.

OTHER GAINS OR (LOSSES), NET

Mzt : HZE2022F12A31RIEFE - AEERE
REE B R BT RERNRREF S
R8 1) B T 4 B 49208,00058 7T © #A N2 FE
T B 491,258,000 T34 KR P45
ERFFERMEMRALCEENESR
WAL BSEB R ASEEREHEBERD

A R o

8. Hittlz=k (518) FHE

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEx FHETT

Gain on debt modification (note 26) B E U S (B 5E26) 2,055 573
2,055 S

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

approximately HK$239,000 (2021: HK$179,000) in cost of
sales.
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMAK
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FET
Interest on other borrowing H b &R F B - 700
Interest on loan from a substantial FTEREERFE
shareholder 2,064 2,569
Interest on lease liabilities (note 27) HEBEMN L (FaE27) - 10
2,064 3,279
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRBLADEF
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/ B AT S B TR GEA) THI & 18R
(crediting): [Caan it
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FET
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN 2 800 880
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) 5t 2 5 K& H ith fE U 7K E
on trade and other receivables, net wER, (BEL) R EEEFE 3,899 (69)
Depreciation of property, VI - B3 R I E (0 FEA)
plant and equipment (note A) 548 618
Rental expenses in respect of HHAENHEHERS
short-term leases 942 957
Staff costs 8 TR AR
Director’s emoluments (note 12) ExMe (FizE12) 1,130 1,034
Other staff costs Hfb 8 TR
- salaries, allowances and benefits in =~ — ¥4 2L REWEA
kind 5,883 6,101
- contributions to retirement benefits ~ — RREFIET &I %
scheme 158 164
6,041 6,265
Note A: Depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2022 included MIZEA : EE2022F12A31ALFENITESR

FE 85 6 A A 49239,000/8 7T (2021 4F -

179,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FIB8HiIAX
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH
- Current tax - RTHATE 18 - -
Macau Complementary Tax BFIFT SR
- Current tax - RIHATE 18 - 1,655
— Underprovision in prior years -BAEFERETR - -
- 1,655

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%. There is no impact to the Group as the Group
does not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Group has
sufficient tax losses brought forward to set-off against both
years’ assessable profits.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

—E - _FFR

M2018F3A21H » BB AGEIB2017
FRBUSED (BT GHIER(TERHIE
2]) SIAFIBHMAH - KHERRL
2018F 3 A28HEREK AERE + IR
ZHAE  BEFMEGHMARG - &S
E£E T E 2,000,000 THEAFEE A
8.25% - M #Ai@2,000,0005% 7T 1% F F
KB E16.5% o THAEFESHMAT A%
B B8 /) A A A B 12 16.5% M B —Fi K
M - AR AEERE BT BT ERT
wmA I EE AR E KA -

HZE2022F K2021F12A31H EFE X
ERBEBFGH  HAAEEHEETIE
[E518 B DABS 45 DA S8 W B 4 JZ A0 B AR B ks
FIFTER -

P T 1548 7 T 9 P L2 0 i AR
Besi Fl12%5H & -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

11.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation per consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FR1G%i5 < ()

FAMBHAXEGE B REMEER
mARPIFIBRBANE R < SIRRANT

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation B 756 AT A 10,030 22,851
Tax credit at the Hong Kong Profits BREBNENE16.5%
Tax rate at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (20214F : 16.5%) 5t EHY
MR R 1,655 3,770
Tax effect of income not taxable and PETERIE 2 BARHBA R
expenses not deductible PAIMBRAS R E
for tax purpose, net HER 360 36
Tax effect of temporary difference not  RIERERE =T IEF £
recognised 53 64
Effect of different tax rates of FOE A RERE R & & T B A A
subsidiaries operating in other RNk RS2
jurisdiction (78) (648)
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) A S AT AR R A E B
not recognised (2,071) (1,722)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not KRR EHFI R BEEEBNHRETE
recognised 81 225
Tax reduction TRIER - (70)
Income tax expense SISy s - 1,655

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$7,524,000 (2021:
HK$19,589,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax loss due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of directors and the chief executive for the

years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

12. EEME

HE2022F N2021F12A31HIEFEH

EEZRTETRAEMEWT :

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZ2022512A31BLEE
Contributions  Equity-settled

Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
ek BAEF REEE
He  HtER ®e SRR ROGREX CH
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Executive director HTES
Hung Yuen Kin izl - 710 - - - 710
Non-executive director FHTES
Lui Man Wah BE 150 - - - - 150
Independent non- BUKHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling BTk 20 - - - - 20
Wong Ling Yan Phillip e 90 - - - - 90
Lee Man Yeung EE 20 - - - - 2
Total emoluments #Ee 420 710 - - - 1,130

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12. EEME @)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021F12R31A LEE
Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
ek R R
e  EuEd ®e SEfR RONREX I
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AT TAT TAT TET A THT
Executive director HiTEE
Hung Yuen Kin RRRfE - 614 - = - 614
Non-executive director FHTES
Lui Man Wah B E 150 = = = = 150
Independent non- BUEHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling BTk 90 - = - - %0
Wong Ling Yan Philip 5ER %0 - a - - 90
Lee Man Yeung FXF 90 - - - - 90
Total emoluments e 420 614 = = = 1,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

There were no share options granted during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no amount
(2021: Nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 13 as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the both years.

Except for a loan from Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, as detailed in note 26 to
these consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

—E - _FFR

12. EEME @)

EXFATRAITERZ e BIRERARA
MAEE EBERRERBER - £X
FIRIERITESRBIIFRTEE M
HRERHCANBEZREEH -

HE2022F &2021F12A31BHIEFE -
BB AR AE - BERRERT BIFFIBE AR
B SRR M FES0 o

HZE2022F12A31HILFE » BERN
EEREEIMTIIAHABRTSFA

T W R — 5 AT sk BB R (2021 6

E)EBRSI MAREB S IMARER %
RSB EE - RMETE - EE
ERESRBERETAHESOLEE -

Bz Fma MRl E26mMaFoIRE
EXiUE%$J3$ AEERRINE
SNV NNCIR £ S RVAS G SETE
ERAARREENEMBEALTERARHE
BUEA B R 25 T 00 4 AR Sk 67 13 (A B ]
FEBNEARS  RHEREH -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included one (2021: one) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

13.

TEmEHER

FRNAEEREGERHEETRIE—RE
E£(Q021F : —HES)  HEHFMFBEER
RAMBRERME12FHE - FAKT
M4 (20214 - MB) &= EE BEIER
NABEMIFETBITHAB)NTFIES
R

2022 2021

20224 20214F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits Fre MEMEF 2,236 1,983
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKE A B AR

scheme 45 54

2,281 2,037

The number of highest paid employee who are not directors

e FIATHEMLIFEZNR=HE

whose remuneration fell within the following bands: BAR:
2022 2021
20224 20214
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 4 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share RAREB NE(ESRERREEZF T,
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the RIBEATEIERTE -

15.

following data:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHAT
Earnings for the year attributable to RRABHER NEIEFERNERF]
owners of the Company 10,104 21,531
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Number of ordinary shares ZBEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FA AT EF I E A M EEE E F
shares for the purposes of basic and By 38 AR N 15 21
diluted earnings per share 503,960,548 432,000,000
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, dilutive B E2022F K2021F12H31HIEFE -
earnings per share has not been presented as there is no R B ITEINY BEEE IR - B
potential dilutive shares outstanding. mE3|GREERT -
DIVIDENDS 15. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final EETEZRMNEZ2022F12A831H 1
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). FREREMR RIS (20214 @ £&) -

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - S{WKRRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

Furniture
Advertising Leasehold Office Motor and
billboard improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
RER BERE  BLAERE RE  BRREE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THEL TAT THET TEL TAT
Cost B
At 1 January 2021 ®2021%1A1A - 314 812 480 1,227 2,833
Addition during the year ERRE 1,675 - o - - 1,675
At 31 December 2021, R2021%512A318
1 January 2022 and 20221810 K
31 December 2022 2022%12A31H 1,675 314 812 480 1,227 4,508
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3f &
At 1 January 2021 202151 A18 . 176 696 3% 664 1,932
Charge for the year FRH] 179 64 93 84 198 618
At 31 December2021and  #2021512A318 R
1 January 2022 202261R1R 179 240 789 430 862 2,550
Charge for the year FR%E 239 64 23 = 222 548
At 31 December 2022 12022%12A31A 418 304 812 480 1,084 3,098
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2022 12022%12A31A 1,257 10 - - 143 1,410
At 31 December 2021 120214612 A31R 1,496 74 23 a 365 1,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y13 - |WERE @
(Continued)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated i B3 K B TR B 1R T 51 R AR AR

on its cost less their residual value on a straight-line basis at EHRE LNEHETERE -
the following rates per annum:

Advertising billboard 7 years & & h2 7%
Leasehold improvement 33.33% HEZE 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 20% RERREE 20%
Office equipment 20% WRERE 20%
Motor vehicle 20% E 20%
No impairment was made for the years ended 31 December BRI ERENR - 8 E2022F &k2021
2022 and 2021, as there were no impairment indicators. F12A318 I FEWERRE -
GOODWILL 17. BHE

HK$’000

FHEIT

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, M2021FE1H18 - 2021512HA31H -

1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 20221 H1H K2022612H831H 1,399
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill BARBRENHANFERGRE M EEREK
are disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial BIEE1919 8 -
statements.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B &EE
Club
membership
ReesE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R2021F1 818 - 2021F12831H

1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 2022%1H1H K2022%F12831H 330
The club membership has indefinite useful life and is carried Bt e A RER - LA ER
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The ZETREEEYR - BEMeE A TES
fair value of club membership is higher than the carrying REREE °

amount.

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

19.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill as set out
in note 17 to these consolidated financial statements, the
balance of goodwill has been allocated to CGU of exhibition
and trade show business and related services.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of
the Company determine that there is no impairment loss on
goodwill (2021: Nil).

The recoverable amount of the exhibition and trade show
CGU as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.1% (2021: 18.2%).
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.5% (2021: 2.5%) growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecast and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on management’s expectations for the
market development.

The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of the these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to CGU to exceed aggregate
recoverable amount of CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER DEPOSITS

20. ESREMEBUREAREMRES

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 37,937 14,753
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (3,940) (41)
33,997 14,712
Deposits e 9,918 11,618
Rental deposits Heke 58 141
Prepayment BT RIR 109 443
Other receivables H A fE GRIR 6,618 47
50,700 26,961
Less: deposits paid for securing B BEHTRRIERBEEIERT
advertising space shown under BEMEMNENIZS
non-current assets (Note) (B=E) (9,889) (9,655)
Shown under current assets IRRRBEEE R 40,811 17,306
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered et REIZE2020F12A31BLFE - A%E

into a subcontracting agreement with an independent third party,
whereby certain advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary
Crossing Facilities are subcontracted to the Group. Further
details in relation to the subcontracting agreement are set out
in the Management and Discussion Analysis to the 2020 annual
report. The Group was required to pay a security deposit of
HK$10,500,000 to secure the advertising spaces from 1 January
2020 to 31 May 2025. The effective interest rate of the non-
current deposits is 2.4% per annum.

The Group classifies the deposit as a financial asset at amortised
cost and assessed the fair value of the deposit as at settlement
date discounted by the prevailing market interest rate. The
difference between the fair value of the deposit as at settlement
date and the transaction price of HK$10,500,000 is recorded as
a contract cost, as disclosed in note 21 to these consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group recorded interest income on the non-current deposit,
amortised under the effective interest rate, of approximately
HK$234,000 (2021: HK$229,000).

HBBIE=FIUDBHE - BHEE
BOFENETESMNESBEBTALEE -
RSB HEAE— P BEHN2020F
FHRNBEETREIN - AEEEX
410,500,000/ TR 75 & A BL1520204F 1
A1B£2025F5831BMEESME - IF
BER S M ERFRETF2.4% °

AEBEZEDBEARBHEKATEDN
THEE  THHREREEBIRRT
MBAERBEN A FE - HENEEB
A F(EEZ FE 10,500,000 7T 2
MEBARIEEHRAE  FBERESE
FAPBBRRMF2IHE - REE2022
F12A81BLFE  AEBEEBSKE
BRAREENIERBIZS 2 F BERAL
234,000 7T (20214F : 229,000/87T) °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group provided customers with credit period ranging
from O to 90 days from the date on which invoice was
issued. The credit terms of each customer of the Group
were determined by the Group’s sales team and were
subject to review and approval of the Group’s management
based on the customers’ payment history, transaction
volume and length of business relationship with the Group.

All outstanding trade receivables balances were being
reviewed by the Group’s sales department on a regular
basis to ensure that any overdue receivable was promptly
monitored and appropriate collection actions were taken.
The Group’s sales department would follow up on the
collections and the Group’s accounting department would
monitor the progress of collection. For those material long
outstanding balances, legal actions would be taken for debt
collection. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, no legal actions were taken by the Group for debt
collection.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (before
allowance for credit losses) at the end of the reporting
period presented based on the invoice days:

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

EZREMERREREMES

(%)

AEEREFREESRLERALEO
EQQRMEEN - AEEEREFPHNIE
EHRARENHEERERE - YARFA
SEEEBREEFNNALE X758
R BN &R B R TSR R A By R B I A
& IAIEE °

e R EEE S EUBGIALGHEANEEH
EEE BT - DA IR BEAE{rT %80 HA B R
T MR AR R A EUE & W k1 TE) o AN
EEEEBHREUIBER - MAEES
TS ERKEEE - RSFEARIAR
BRGNS @ ANEE g RBUEAREITE
BUETE - RNEE2022F & 2021F12 A
S1ALFE AEBEMEREREIMER
ITEIBIET o

e RS0 E 5 REYRIEIRE
EEEBER) NSRS BHRANRE S TH
N~

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAT

1-30 days 1-30H 11,375 2,554
31-90 days 31-90H 3,790 3,401
91-365 days 91-365H 14,579 8,581
Over 365 days tBiB365H 8,193 217
37,937 14,753

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 are set out in note 33.
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

CONTRACT COSTS 21. A
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHEIT
Cost to fulfill contracts in relation to: BITEBANUTSEENEAZ
XA
Exhibition and trade show business RENEZREEK
and related services N8R AR - 429
Publications and advertising business ~ TI|4 & & & 2 7% 6,688 6,925
6,688 7,354
Less: contract costs for securing B BEEESTIRIERBEE
advertising space shown under HTNESEUENE LKA
non-current assets (591) (828)
Shown under current assets TR REEEIR 6,097 6,526

Contract costs capitalised for exhibition and trade show
business and related services related to the cost to fulfill
contracts of design and production of exhibition, trade show
events and advertisement resulted in customers entering
contracts for the Group’s design and production which are
still under process at the end of the reporting date. There
was no impairment on the contract cost during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, contract costs
capitalised for publications and advertising business related
to the time value of money arising from the deposit to
secure advertising space of approximately HK$591,000
(2021: HK$828,000), as disclosed in note 20 to these
consolidated financial statements, and costs to fulfill
contracts for advertising business arising from prepayments
for short term rental of advertising spaces of approximately
HK$6,097,000 (2021: HK$6,097,000). There was no
impairment on the contract cost during the year.

AEFRARER RBIEMFILNAH
RifE BMRNEETY  WRERES
REXHMAEBRGHEERCE LKA
HETRE BIREEPHREERK
SUEEHZRAER - FREKRAL &
TARE -

HZE2022F12A31BHIEEFE > FlY k&
EE¥BEHEERNA LK AEREE
SRNEBEMNESHEENERRBEEED
591,000/ 7T (20214 : 828,000 7T) (40
ZELRAB M RRMIT20FTIHE) LA K B
TREEBE LMK ZA46,097,0007% T
(20214 : 6,097,000/ 7T) (HAFER EE
VEMNSHHEEMES)ER - FAEY
B AN 4 8% R JRL(E o

o oaEE BHEE (2R) ARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22 MEHSEWRIE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group HZE2020F12A31HILFE - AEEHA
entered into a lease arrangement with an independent BYE= A GFREEIVHELEE (4
third party for storage space (the “Head lease”), with the HE)D) HEHEaERZSLETER
corresponding lease liabilities recognised in note 27 to RWF27HER c WEREBNBILE =
these consolidated financial statements, in order to provide i BE(HHE]) - HERSBIZR2F
sub-leasing to a separate independent third party (the “Sub- HAET - HEMB BB ERERA
lease”). The term of the lease and sub-lease entered into is REXHBEETE -
2 years. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at
the contract date over the lease terms.
Since the term of the Head lease and Sub-lease are the AREHEEERSHENFHAR @ NEBE
same, the Group transferred substantially all the risks ENEBEEFMBRENBRE S Rk &E
and rewards from ownership of the underlying asset, and W At ESERARMERSE - RIEWE
therefore classified the Sub-lease as a finance lease and REHHEENRENERAEERE - WKHME
derecognised the right-of-use asset related to the Head WIRE FRERARBEEERYGIE - &£
lease and recognised the net investment in the sub-lease as IERNFERAEEERSHNREFE
finance lease receivables. The net gain arising between the 2 TEEE A B W e 7R B Ath Uk 2 ok B 18 A T
derecognised right-of-use asset and the net investment in R e
the sub-lease is recognised in other gains or losses.
The carrying amount of finance lease receivables and the AR S RURIENREE R FAZEE N
movements during the year are as follows: N
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1BMEREE - 470
New leases g - -
Interest income recognised during the  F A REFRHY Il B A
year - 10
Payments received BT - (480)

Carrying amount at 31 December

12 A31 BRBREE

Analysed into: DR
Current portion BHAER
Non-current portion FEBNEREE 7>
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the interest rate implicit in the
above finance lease is 5.06% per annum.

No aging analysis based on due dates of the finance lease
receivable instalments which are past due (instalments
which are not yet due at the end of the reporting period are
excluded) is presented as the finance lease receivables is
paid in advance.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group did not entered into a lease arrangement with
an independent third party in order to secure the storage
space.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances

Bank balance comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with a maturity period of three months period or less bearing
prevailing market interest rates. As at 31 December 2022,
the interest rate range from 0.01% to 0.1%. (2021: 0.01%
to 0.1% per annum).

22.

23.

—E - _FFR

B 5 A B YRR ()

M2020%E12A31H » Ll EHAERES
F R & F F)%5.06% ©

BREEEERUFIRTTRE S - At
W2 HRBECBHREHERKD BN
(T BEREEE R E AR 2 BAE0
MEIH B ETRRE DN ©

HZE2022F K2021F12 A31 B IEFE -
AEEMERB T FE=HI T HELTHIN
BSTFREZM -

RITERRES

RITER
RITHEBRBIERSUERR=EAHKIUR
BB R IRIR T S FI R 5T B A R HASR 17
TFR » R20225F12A31H » F£FERNF

0.01%ZE0.1% (20214 : FFF0.01%E
0.1%) °

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, EZRHMENTIER
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade payables B SRR 9,035 9,474
Other payables H M FE IR 7,264 75
Accrued expenses (Note) et & A (FED) 2,822 2,806
19,121 12,355
Note: Accruals mainly consist of accrued staff costs and accrued izt : BErBAXrEZEERETE ITRARER
professional fee. BEER -
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within TEEAFTBE SN FRIBRR —FERNEE K
one year or are repayable on demand. WEREE -
During the year, the credit period granted by the suppliers HEFIREFARTHEEHR RN TF0E
are generally ranging from 0 to 60 days (2021: 0 to 60 60H (20214 : 0£60H)
days).
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the NTARZEZEHHEYNE S ENKIER
end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice WEHARABRER DT
dates:
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0—-60 days 0-60H 401 3,810
61-90 days 61-90H 146 683
Over 90 days B0 H 8,488 4,981
9,035 9,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. 88 ¥E &N EAE
Contract assets: BHEE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Arising from performance under BERENBESRENMEBARE T
exhibition and trade show and BHEE
related services - 276
Payment for exhibition and trade show and related services EERBRNEFRE &*ﬁ MRS - A

is not due from the customer until the exhibition and trade FWREFEERERE FHRE RIE Fﬁﬁlﬁ
show and related services are complete and therefore B ATHFIA - llit ’Jé?ﬁf@ =
a contract asset is recognised over the period in which SREREERBESRNE ’]T?%wﬁﬁi\
the exhibition and trade show and related services are KARTGIC S EE TR P & BB ER
transferred to the customer to date relative to the services
promised under the contracts.
Contract liabilities: BHAaE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Receipt in advance for exhibitionand  FBWERENRE SR EIHE B H A
trade show project - 720
Receipt in advance for advertisement 8 Ut & & AR 7 2B
service 856 931
856 1,651

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. 888 E &SN EE‘@E)
(Continued)

Movements in contract liabilities: BHBESZE :
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Balance at 1 January BN A1 H 8 ek 1,651 2,984
Decrease in contract liabilities as a HAFEAERBAGT ABYIEL
result of recognising revenue during BEEREHNAERD
the year was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the
period (1,651) (2,264)
Increase in contract liabilities as a FHARBEFPRBMRESREH
result of consideration received from BEEM
customers during the year 856 931
Balance at 31 December 12 A31 BRI &84 856 1,651
When the Group receives a deposit at the acceptance ErAKETEERENRESREER ME
of exhibition and trade show project and advertisement HEEOFWREMIEZE  GHBEREGHRR
contracts, giving rise to contract liabilities at the start of the RELAEZWGERR -

contract until the revenue is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

26. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

On 22 November 2019, the Company and Mr. Lui, the
substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into an
agreement whereby Mr. Lui has agreed to make available
to the Company and the Company has agreed to accept
an unsecured loan facility, containing a repayment on
demand clause, of up to HK$40 million (the “Shareholder
Loan”) during the available period which will expire on 31
December 2021. The Shareholder Loan will bear interest at
2.0% per annum and repayable within 15 months from the
drawdown date.

Although the Shareholder Loan contains a repayment
on demand clause, the carrying value is recorded under
non-current liabilities, as Mr. Lui has confirmed he will not
exercise his right to demand repayment immediately until
the Group has financial capability to do so, which was
estimated to be beyond the term of the loan.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$10,000,000
has been advanced from Mr. Lui. The amount is repayable
from 24 February 2021 to 12 March 2021. The loan was
initially recognised at its fair value, being the present value
of the loan discounted at the prevailing market interest rate.
The difference between the face value of the loan and in the
amount initially recognised of approximately HK$1,378,000
was treated as deemed contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to capital reserve accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
further utilised HK$13,500,000 of the Shareholder Loan.
The amount is repayable on 23 June 2021. Similarly, the
loan was recognised initially at the present value discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate and the difference
between the face value of the loan and the amount
initially recognised, being approximately, HK$1,865,000,
was deemed as capital contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to the capital reserve.

—E - _FFR

26. TERKEX

R2019%F 11 A228 » AR AIEARQF]E
ERRBEAEFT L - Bl - a4
B 2728 A B (0202112 A31H &
WAARRBRE  MARFERBES
BEoEAAES TAHARERERF
HHERBEERRE ((REEK]) - BRE
BERBRENR2.0%:8 - BB R
HEAREEH151E B REE -

BEBRRERBERELLEHER B
HEmMEMASERBRE  REASSELE
B MR EL N & RIS 1T 3 H B SRE KA R
BEEASEBEMBEENMULTE - MER
FHEEETERHR -

HE2019F12A31BIEFE  ALLED
783710,000,000/8 7T ° 3% 5 JAZAE R 2021
F2H24HE2021F3A12B HEEE -
BEXVSHRERATFEEMRERITHHF
KW EFIRE)ER - ERXEELEY]
PRS2 BRI ETEA1,378,000/8 T
WEARETERRLE - WIEEFTAZ
PN I

HZE2020F12A31B ILFE - KAAFI#
— B AR R E K F #913,500,000/8 7T °
ZREAN20215E6 23 EE - A
- ERVFSIRBIEIRITH IS F RAEEA
RERR  BEREERVFERSEZHE
B Z 58 491,865,0008 TG VET BALER
HE - WEt ABAREE -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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26. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

(Continued)

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into an extension agreement (the “Extension Agreement”)
which (i) extended the available period of the Shareholder
Loan facility to 31 December 2022 and (i) revised the
repayment date of the loan drawn, which originally falls
fifteen months from the respective drawdown date, by a
further eighteen months from the respective drawdown
date (the “Extended Loan Period”). As a result, the loan will
be repayable from 24 August 2022 to 23 December 2022.
The interest charged during the Extended Loan Period is
2% per annum on the amount of outstanding principal. The
Extension Agreement constituted a substantial modification
on the financial liability and shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original loan and recognition of a new
loan. The original loan as at the debt modification date,
being 31 December 2020, was derecognised and the fair
value of the modified Shareholder loan under the Extended
Loan Period (the “New Debt”) discounted at the prevailing
market interest rate, was recognised. The difference
between the face value of the loan and the fair value of the
New Debt of approximately HK$4,348,000, at the debt
modification date, is deemed as capital contribution from
the substantial shareholder. The balancing amount, being
the difference between the carrying amount of the original
loan and the discounted new debt at market interest rate,
was charged to other gains and losses at debt maodification
date of approximately HK$532,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Mr. Lui also
entered into a supplemental agreement under which Mr.
Lui formally agreed to waive the overriding right for demand
of further security and assurances and/or immediate
repayment of the loans outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

FERRER @)

R2020%F 128318 » AR A EALER]
VERHBZ(EERZE]D @ ZHROBKR
REFRRERNERBHBERZE2022912
A318 K\ RAE 812 A HEs15(E
ARMEFRRIERAPEITEREZEESE
REBHRFH8EA(ERERE) -
It ZE RS AR 202298 A24H £2022
F12A 20 HIFEE - TREZHAH
FIBIEREEARSREF N E2%UE - &
EH@BREERaBENERET - e
AFREABREERNELLNTERNRE
e o NEBEE B HI(BN2020412 A 31
BNRAEERD TUKRIEER  MER
ERHETRKEERIER(HESFDH
AN ERIRIBEIRITT IS R IR M T AR
ReNESEERL  EXABEHENER
NF(E 2 B Z 544,348,000/ TR
ETERRELE - SHBEEVRBER
FREEEEM SR EMRNMEFHRES
fEHY = %8) #9532,00078 7T A 8 £ 20204
12A31HIEFEREKEEHEAHM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

(Continued)

On 6 September 2021, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into a deed extension and waiver which Mr. Lui agreed to
waive all rights in any outstanding interest accrued under
the Shareholder Loan and Extension Agreement. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt the modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact of the debt
modification is a gain of approximately HK$742,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and was credited to other
gains or losses, as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated
financial statements.

On 7 September 2021, the Company repaid HK$1,000,000
to the substantial shareholder. The amount of contract is
modified, thus it resulted in a debt modification. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt the modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact on the debt
modification is a loss approximately to HK$169,000 and
was charged to other gains and losses for the year ended
31 December 2021, as disclosed in note 8 to these
consolidated financial statements.

On 21 March 2022, the Company and Mr. Lui entered into
the Second Extension Agreement which (i) extended the
repayment date for further 12 months from the extension
period of the Extension Agreement; (i) incurred the accrued
interest at 2.0% per annum from the date of signing the
Second Extension Agreement to repayment date; (iii)
repaid a partial settlement amounting to HK$3,000,000
on 31 March 2022; and (iv) cancelled the unutilised loan
facilities with effective from 31 March 2022. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact of the debt
modification is a gain of approximately HK$1,337,000
and was credited to other gains and losses for the year
ended 31 December 2022, as disclosed in note 8 to these
consolidates financial statement.

—E - _FFR

26. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER 26. FERFRE (&)

MR2021F9H6H » KAREFSLER L
EEA M MERE - Bt atERERE
BRREFMEREE MEAABEERS
RATERET  EHEETSEHERE
¥ ARARASHRAEESTERE - 10
ZEGAMERRHI SR - E5E
FREZE2021F12A31 B IEFERITH
SR BIEET42,0008TT - Wat A
Hup gk g o

R2021F9A7H  ARBMEZBRREE
#£1,000,00087TC - B AEMESR -
EEKEREE - BHEETEENR
EREE  AUARRBRAEE 5t
BRI - NZEHRE M BHmERM 8T
B EBEENUBEEMTOREBE
169,000 7T + W B#E£2021F12 H31
HIEFEE e R EEF R -

R2022F3H21H » NARIE R FLEE]
VEZRERGE  ZHEOBERA
HEERHB ENERBRE—_FSLERI2
A (iBF_NERMBEFTBHE
EEXREHILEEAZFNE FREXAE
2.0% : (iii)fA2022F3 A31BEE I D 4
& 4 %3,000,0008 7T ¢ M (iv)zE AR BN
EXRE 0 B2022%43A3188BEK - &

BRAZESHER - MZSEHRAUHK
MERMEASHAEE  EHEEFNMETE
fhat 40 R 21,337,000 7T » Wit A#
F2022%12 A31 B L FEH MR R E

18 e
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26. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

(Continued)

On 24 August 2022, the Company repaid HK$3,000,000
to the substantial shareholder. The amount of contract is
modified, thus it resulted in a debt modification. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt the modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact on the debt
modification is a loss approximately to HK$318,000 and
was charged to other gains and losses for the year ended
31 December 2022, as disclosed in note 8 to these
consolidated financial statements.

On 19 October 2022, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into the Third Extension Agreement which (i) extended the
repayment date for further 12 months from the extension
period of the Extension Agreement; (i) incurred the accrued
interest at 2.0% per annum from the date of signing the
Third Extension Agreement to repayment date; (iii) repaid
a partial settlement amounting to HK$2,000,000 on 19
October 2022; and (iv) the Shareholder loan has contained a
repayment on demand clause. The debt modification would
not result in a substantial modification and accordingly
the Company would adopt modification accounting. The
estimated financial impact of the debt modification is a
gain of approximately HK$1,036,000 and was credited to
other gains and losses for the year ended 31 December
2022, as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

26. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER 26. T ERKRE R (&
(Continued)

Movement of the loan from a substantial shareholder during FATERRERESFHIEROT :
the year is as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 1 January ®1A1H 20,148 19,152
Repayment during the year FREK (8,000) (1,000)
Imputed interest expense (note 9) HEF B X (i FE9) 2,064 2,569
Credited to other gains or losses at REBEE R AR a3k
debt modification (note 8) &8 (M 5E8) (2,055) (573)
At 31 December M12A31H 12,157 20,148
The loan from a substantial shareholder are repayable as FERBEZIZATHREE
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Within one year or on demand —FREIZ Bk 12,157 20,148
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A £ - BTNEBERF
two years - =
12,157 20,148
Less: Amount due for settlement B 2B A A E R Bl E A
within 12 months or contain B ESREE R IE
a repayment on demand clause GIRRREBBEET)
(shown under current liabilities) (12,157) (20,148)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A & & E 2 HAFUOR
12 months - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a lease arrangement for storage space with
an independent third party in order to sub-lease the same
tenure to a separate independent third party for a term of
two years with further details in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

. HER®E

HE2020F12A31BILFE - AEEE
BYFEZFRINFRHEEBEETHE -
B—GFREEEAEI A TS —BBILE
=7 AHAMT  #—FHBIANEE
B R R MIE22 ©

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEABNEREmERFRNEEHWNT :
during the year are as follows:
2022 2021
2022 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&IT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1EMEREEE 50 340
Accretion of interest recognised during 48 IFE 52 89 FI| B 12 1
the year - 10
Payments (N (50) (300)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31 B EREE - 50
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BHAER - 50
Non-current portion FERNEREE 7> - -

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. HEEBE®@

28.

Total minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
REHENRAE REBRENRRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT TR THET

Finance lease receivables
comprises

FERREHERE

Within one year —FR - 50 - 50
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRMEN - - - -

- 50 - 50
Less: Total future interest expenses I8, : 7 2R Fl| 5. 2 4058 - i - -
Present value of lease liabilities HEREBHRE - 50 - 50

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)

A 2R NEE
B #5008
GIRRIRE
BEET) - (50)

Amount due for settlement after
12 months (shown under non-

M12{E AR EE 2
FRGIRRIER

current liabilities) HAMFEEAT) - -
*  The amount is less than HK$1,000. d ZE A 1,0008 7T
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HZE2022F12A318IEFE - AEEF]
entered into several short-term leases for office space. As YETEERLAZTTTHNESHEE - ©
at 31 December 2022, the outstanding lease commitments 2022%F12A318 ' BEEZERLAEZEMH
relating to these office space is HK$216,000 and there is HAREEREEAIE /216,000 7T © MK
no new lease commitments by the Group at the end of the HRHER S RN &2 B30 48 1) R A 4R A ET AR B
reporting period but not yet commenced. ¥’
AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER AND  28. FEURR R % Fff B 2 Rl FE = R IR R
A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF ;g
A SUBSIDIARY
The amounts are unsecured, interest free, and repayable on ERAFEAEERR REREENREE -
demand.

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. RA&

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the FAXRRBRAEBHOT -
year are as follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Authorised: EE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.02 each (2021: 5,000,000,000 E{E0.02/8 7T & Ak (20214 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) 5,000,000,000/#%
SR HEE0.028 T BR) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHARE :
518,400,000 ordinary shares of 518,400,0000% & X EI{E0.02/% 7T
HK$0.02 each (2021: 432,000,000 B (20214 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) 432,000,0000% & i H &
0.028 L EBIR) 10,368 8,640
The movements in authorised and issued share capital of FARRDNBET KB BEITRAZESHNOT !
the Company during the year were as follows:
Number of Share
authorised Number of premium
shares issued shares Issued capital account Total
ZERAHE CERARGEE CBAREA RORER ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2021, RZFZ-§-A-H"

31 December 2021 and ZE--5+ZA=1-AR

1 January 2022 RZZE--F—-f—H 5,000,000,000 432,000,000 8,640 94,331 102,971
Issuance of new shares ~ MEEFABTHR » NBE

by way of placing, netof TR A

issue costs - 86,400,000 1,728 6,048 1,176
At 31 December 2022 RZE-Z#+ZF=1-H 5,000,000,000 518,400,000 10,368 100,379 110,747
On 3 March 2022, an aggregate of 86,400,000 placing MR2022F 3 + & $£86,400,0008% i & i%
shares have been allotted and issued with the net proceeds M ERZETESREERN0.098 T 2
amounting to approximately HK$7.6 million at the issue NEEAT - PISFRIEF R4 A7,600,000/8
price of HK$0.09 per placing share. JC °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23
January 2015 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible participants including:

()  any executive or non-executive director including any
independent non-executive director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i)  any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate management) to the
Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
and

(v} Any other person who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group to take up
options (together, the “Participants”).

The Company is entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date on
16 February 2015. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue a
circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, with such individual and his or her close
associates (or his associates if the individual is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.

—E - _FFR

0. fEMRHERT &

RATR201551 A 23 8 B Ay —TEEE IR
FEITEHE D A RA B2 EE R EE
ROk - BFE

) EARTRENTES  BELR
B (7 Ak B 2 7 B £ 78 37 3 90
TEEREMER (T BAFR
)

(i) XHEAIZBEREBEAKEEM
BESIBEBHNEAENENR
AATRARE - ZREIEMT
Wi

(i) ZER [ B £ ] R ] 2K s R ) (BOR
2 Bl s REEE)

vy AEENERRRIRHEEEMH
fem R

v EFScgMNBERAEUAKEEEER
BAR T H b A TR RE A (5078
[28%E]) o

AAE)EEETERE  HREBEFEED
RIFT A AR R TEm A TEITHRMD 2
& TNEHBEN2015F2H16H FEEA
BETRMDMN10% ° FRIEGEM TR
BIE/S AR SR HEE R FIE@ K& - AR A ]
FMERI B R B FZ R R - MR EAT B
e ARITE BT R ETTE R AREET T
Al FEITHRGBE - THBBARF
T BB ITRAR D HI30% ° IE121E A
HARE A A M)Al A 35 Y B IR IR 9
R0 4B 8L - FEND £ AR R R R A B et
T - REARETSBBARARBEETR
MEI1% » Mz AT REZZHE A (K
ZATRBEEALT  AAEBZEA) AN

LR o
EHEE (ER) BRAH
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the option
period after the option has been granted but, in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. An option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the
extent not already exercised) on the expiry of the option
period.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may
be exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the option. The exercise price
is determined by the directors and shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share
on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
share.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Scheme
is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and options which
are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

All of the share options granted under the Scheme have
been cancelled as at 16 October 2019.

There were no share options granted during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 and outstanding
number of share option remained Nil as at each of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly contribution of HK$1,500. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in Macau are covered by a government-mandated defined
contribution plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macau Government. Contributions are generally made by
both employees and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund Contribution
managed by the Macau Government. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to make
the specified contributions.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation.
No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

31.

—E - _FFR
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at
the date of this annual report, there was sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

32. EXmEERE

7 SR R A A A R A S AR S
A ERE HRBEGE - EBE(L
EBRRAHEMEREABRELDR - £
EE R BRERBE — SRR TE -

AEBNEARBRERE MRS FEDY
FREURANRBEA ARBIG#ED  BREE
BITIRA RS -

ARREFFFFRIAENERE - (ERUL
R —HD  EFERRERKAREE
BRIEARBHNRER - REESHHERZ
& AREREBIKMNERE - BITHRG
RERBD AR BEITHERXERREE
A B BB EARIE

BEARQRIAIARESHERNEIREES
FrE - RAFRBEE  BIBEGEMLETMR
A3 - ARBHERFTORESEHITRG
25% M R AR RIRE -

2022 2021

20224 20214F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Total borrowings (note) CEXEACIED) 12,157 20,148
Less: Bank balances and cash BRI (1,908) (10,949)
Net debt BERFER 10,249 9,199
Total equity to owners of the Company ZNA Rl G A 425E 31,889 14,009
Net debt to equity ratio FREERLL X 0.32 0.66

Note: Total borrowings represent loan from a substantial shareholder.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33. 2T H
Categories of financial instruments SMIAER

2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost RHERATRNSMEE 53,924 38,019

Financial liabilities cHAE
Amortised cost B IHA A 31,278 32,503

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a shareholder, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, trade and other receivables
and deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and loan from a substantial shareholder. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

—E - _FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. £ET A

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau
Pataca same as the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk
which materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

During the year, the Group was exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate loan from a
substantial shareholder (see notes 26 for details of the
borrowing).

The Group is not exposed to any significant cash flow
interest rate risk which may materially affect the Group’s
results of operations in 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collaterals, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and contract
assets in order to minimise risk, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial position and condition is performed
on each and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 24% (2021: 46%) of the total trade receivables of
the Company was due from the largest customer and 81%
(2021: 77%) of the total trade receivables of the Group was
due from the largest 5 customers. Taking into accounts the
creditworthiness of the customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of bad debts, the directors consider
that such concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

33. EMIA@®

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applied internal credit rating for its customers. Certain
of the Group’s trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to past default experience and current past

TRAREEERREEE

1= B E B R el {8 271 (&)

ERASBEEERREREN—&D - A&
BHHEZPEANMBEENR - AEEH
=T ESREFIETDRELREERR S
EW2EBEHEARBEROLRNE TR
Hi R EA%‘%%EI@T DH - TRIEHEH

due exposure of the debtor. The following table provides FrEREERR & E 5 ERKERNTERE
information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for BEEE/N ﬁﬂ EBEAZOZQE&ZO% F
trade receivables which are assessed collectively based on 12 A31 BRI (A A 1T R B AT o
provision matrix as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Gross Weighted Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount
hn#EF 39 &
BRE4AE EiE=E EiEERE RENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12H831H
Trade receivables B 5 W RIR
Current B HA 11,072 0.76% (84) 10,988
1 to 30 days past due #HE1Z30H 2,211 1.09% (24) 2,187
31 to 90 days past due B HIB1ZE90H 4,333 1.52% (66) 4,267
91 to 365 days past due  #HI91E365H 12,590 2.67% (336) 12,254
Over 365 days past due — #IHAE#E365H —
not credit impaired REBEERE 7,400 41.88% (3,099) 4,301
Over 365 days past due — #IHAE#E365H —
credit impaired HIREERE 331 100% (331) -
37,937 10.39% (3,940) 33,007
At 31 December 2021 7"2021F12H831H
Trade receivables B 5 WA
Current Bl &R 3,220 0.19% 6) 3,214
1 to 30 days past due #HEI1Z=30H 1,663 0.24% (4) 1,659
31 to 90 days past due BHI31Z=90H 3,051 0.23% 7) 3,044
91 to 365 days past due  #81HA91%365H 6,603 0.22% (14) 6,589
Over 365 days past due — @ HiEBiB365H —
not credit impaired REBREERE 207 0.39% (1) 206
Over 365 days past due — @ HiEBiB365H —
credit impaired HIREERE 9 100% 9) -
14,753 0.28% 41) 14,712
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by management of the Group to
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

The carrying amount of the bank balances and cash, other
receivables and deposits, amount due from a shareholder
and amount due from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary included in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

The credit risk on bank balances and cash is limited
because the counterparties are financial institutions and
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s other receivables
and deposits, amount due from a shareholder and amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on historical credit loss experience,
general economic conditions of the relevant industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. Based on the result of the foregoing, no
impairment loss was recognised during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLI
mEMBHRRME

DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. 2RITAE(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies SREKREEREEERBER(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B 7 B R 5 E 771 (18)
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of RE E2022F N2021F12HA31H IEF

trade and other receivables during the

years ended 31 E B hEMEWFIENEESHERE

December 2022 and 2021 is as followings: BT
Trade receivables
2 EWHE
total
Bt
HK$’000
TET
At 1 January 2021 R20215F1 A 18 301
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed), net B HER,/ (B E) KR EE R FEE (69)
Written off (Note) s (P =) (191)
At 31 December 2021 72021%F12H31H 41
Impairment loss recognised EREANBESR 3,899
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H 3,940
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amounts written Mizk ©  HZE2022F12A31BIEFE - HREE
off on trade receivables and other receivables of approximately ERAEYEERAIKREFE  BHEK
HKS$NIl, respectively, (2021: approximately HK$191,000 HIERHEMERRIBENRESENES
respectively) as management considered there is no realistic 77T (20214F : #9191,000/87T) °

prospect of recovery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group has trade receivables
with gross amount of approximately HK$331,000 (2021:
approximately HK$9,000) being credit impaired since the
management of the Group considered these balances are
unlikely to be recoverable or partially recoverable.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
any leading covenants and to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

—E - _FFR

33. EMIA@®

TRE R EE B R RBUR ()

1= B/ B K Bl {8 771 (&)

MN2022512A31H » "EBAE ALY
331,000/ 70 (20214F © 499,000 7T) F &
SRBFIEHRREERE  REEAEE
B ERAE AR e E I o U B ZE
KR o

R 5H T REBRREEFEEER
TREENRNRT  HRITESKNEER
REBRAER -

MEBE LR

AEBNBRBERERAR LBHRD
BB RARTEEMEERZRE - UHERF
HGRARRE  ULKRBETZSHERE
B 78 R A G R DA R LA B R B R R

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date
at which the Group can be required to pay. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, it has not taken into account of
the matters included in the Second Extension Agreement
agreed with the substantial shareholder on 21 March
2022. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

RT A (@

TRAREERRERBEE

MEBE 2R ()

TEREEFMERFERESRE + HREAR
SEA B BN RT BHIHIE - #
F2021F12A31BIEFE - WAREBER
2022F3A21HEFEREFHENE X
ERBEFBRENEE - WA ERAF
B BIRREHARNFIEHGS RN

TH o

Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1 year or but within undiscounted carrying
rate  on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
EFg 1R/ BE1F RER
BRA=E FRER BOR2E RERELE REAE
% HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
% TET TET TET TET
2022 20224
Non-derivative financial kTESHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER
oA 19,121 - 19,121 19,121
Loan from a substantial FERRER
shareholder 14 14,500 - 14,500 12,157
Total A 33,621 - 33,621 31,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

33. EMIA@®

TRAREEERREEE

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEE2/E A (&)
Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1 year or but within - undiscounted carrying
rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
TS 1R b Ak REGH
BRME FIREK BLR2E HERELH FHgE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT THEx TET TET
2021 2021
Non-derivative financial TELRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER
PR 12,355 . 12,355 12,355
Lease liabilities HEAR 5 50 - 50 50
Loan from a substantial FERREX
shareholder 14 22,500 - 22,500 20,148
Total At 34,905 = 34,905 32,553
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRMIAQAFEFE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities BEEMBEL N FEGTENAEELH
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEERBENLFE
Fair value hierarchy NP EER

The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Except for the loan from a substantial shareholder, which
initial measured at fair value and subsequent measured
at amortised cost, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021. The directors estimated the
fair value of the loan from a substantial shareholder as at 31
December 2022 to be approximately HK$13,584,000 which
has been calculated by discounting the future cash flows at
the market interest rate.

—E - _FFR

MR20224F 2021FE12 8310 * A A TN
EEMZEATFELSEHFTENEREER
BE-

BEEMEEWH UL FHETBHAEE
EHEERB B A FE

BRI IR AT ER 2 Rk E & IR K AR
ENEFEWRRERI - 1202212 A31
H&2021F12A31H @ ANEBE KA
B AYENeM T ARMEREATF
BEVESEAEE - BEZHT - KB —F
FTEREHNEZTN2022F12 A31BHA
F{E4 513,584,000/ 7 » JyiL H 15 F
EPMAFBEREFESE -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 34. BRIEEBHELENBEEHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFAEEERMETDELENEESY
arising from financing activities, including both cash and S AeiERe kR ¥ - 8
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities AEEHEEANBRENDEREEREIARNK
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows RenE B EAIKIEATEE
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of GEBRETRERE NERETIHNIRESR
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. £
Loan from a
Other substantial
borrowings shareholder
(including (including
interest interest Lease
payable) payable) liabilities Total
HirfER  FERRER
(BREMRNE) (BEERFR) HERRE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT T
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 7,000 19,152 340 26,492
Credited to other gains and losses at debt ~~ REKEF R ALtz R
modification (note 8) BB (7s) - (573) 5 (573)
Interest expense (note 9) 8% (f3E0) 700 2,569 10 3,279
Financing cash flows RAHLHE (7,700) (1,000) (300) (9,000)
At 31 December 2021 12021E12A318 ‘ 20,148 50 20,198
Credited to other gains and lossesat ~ REXBEBT ALMNER
debt modification (note 8) SEEGET) - (2,055) - (2,055)
Interest expense (note 9) FIS B (MaE9) - 2,064 - 2,064
Financing cash flows MERLRE - (8,000) (50) (8,050)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12831A - 12,157 - 12,157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their emoluments are
disclosed in note 12.

Mr. Lui, a substantial shareholder and a non-executive
director of the Company, has granted an unsecured loan
facility of up to HK$40,000,000 during the available period
which will expire on 31 December 2023. On 21 March
2022, there was the Second Extension Agreement which
terminated the unutilised loan facility with effective on 31
March 2022.The Facility bears an interest of 2% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an aggregate
amount of HK$14,500,000 (2021: HK$22,500,000) of the
Facility has been drawn down by the Company which has
been utilised to repay the outstanding loans due and owing
to independent third parties of the Group.

—E - _FFR

35. EXEMLIRS

B EMBRERMBEEIN  NEERNSF
NEANTEREH TS

AEBETEEEBABRARBES ~
FH M2 FIERMT 1285 -

AR EERBRIFNTESELETEHR
FHEIR (%R 2023F12 A31 B f@m) 2t
& A] #40,000,0005% 7T B 4T 30 B 2R
& o FA2022%3A218 - F_RERWE
RAURIEARBAERBE - B202293A°
S1THRBEM - ZBMERFFNE2%T S °

REE2022F12A31HIEFE © KA A
WA E A HIZE14,500,0005% 7T (2021
& : 22,500,000/ 7T) * ZERBECHER
EEINPRIS FAERBLE= AR
BEER -
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159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

36. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEMBRATFIE

MEARN—RER

General information of subsidiaries

RBERROARB EEMB A RFEH

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out as follows: FanT
Issued and
Country/ Class of fully paid
place of shares held/ share capital/
incorporation registered Proportion of ownership interest and voting power registered
B or operation capital held by the Company capital  Principal activities
AR ERR
g£0%/ fERG/ ARRRENERER BERE/
WEARER ] AmERER REELA iftEx  IEXE
2022 2021
02F 20016
Direct Indirect Direct Indlirect
EE B B i
% % % %
Grand Qceanus (HK) Limited HongKong  Ordinary 100 - 100 - HK$1  Provision of management
service
L8 (ERERA B LRk BT RUEEERHE
QOcean Media (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong ~ Ordlinary - 100 - 100 HK$100  Sales of magazines and
provision of magazines
advertising service
BEERARAA B Lk 0087 REMERERES
B R
TBC (note) HongKong ~ Ordinary - 67 - 67 HK$10,000  Provision of exhibition and
trade show service
Bl R 3K B Lak 1000087 REREREZRERS
Tiance Cultural Communication ~ Macau Ordinary - 99 - 99 MOP100,000  Sales and distrioution of
Limited publications and sales of
print and online
advertising space
AR ERARAA A Lak 100000875%  HERFTHY  THE
MRk LR ENE

iz - BLRBIRAR RN EE M A HE

BAFE - BRBEMETENR  ZMBA

Note: TBC is a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The subsidiary has a financial reporting year end dated on 31

160

March in accordance with the local statutory requirements,
which is not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group were prepared based on the
management accounts of these subsidiaries for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

36. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the
directors result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling
interest:

Proportion of

ownership

interest and

Place of voting power held
incorporation and by the Company

Loss allocated to

36. TEMEARFHE @

M2 RN —RER &)

EREIIRRBMBAR  ARAEER
B EBREAKEXEUEE - EFR
o REEMHEBARNFIBEHERFS
BRILE °

BEEAHZRREF 2 HWEA TN
#1

THRFIR AR EAEA RS
2EHBA TR

Accumulated

Name of subsidiary place of business 2022 and 2021 non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
20225 % 20215
LNGIESE ]
1 B M 3t B WRERER
WELRERE ES b ZRLS  SEREFERERNER Rtk ERER
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20214 20225 20216
TBC Hong Kong 67% (57) (462) (363) (306)
Bt K2 BB

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

—E - _FFR

BRASERAE SFHERERNHER
AN BEEREEN X - A THMBE
M EHEEEAKE ARMENNEEE -

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022912 A31H L FE

36. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36.

(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

ETEME QRS @

MR ATRN—ARER (8

TBC BLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Current assets mEEE 2,724 2,346
Non-current assets EMBNEE 63 174
Current liabilities EIR=Ri (3,888) (3,447)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - -

Equity attributable to owners PN/NSIE Z DN 3

of the Company T (738) (621)
Non-controlling interests of TBC B 2R B8 FE I i 2 (363) (306)
Revenue Wz 5,308 7,255
Expenses F X (5,482) (8,656)
Loss and total comprehensive expense &8 & 2 [ F Sk 4258 (174) (1,401)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

36. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEMBELAFREG@E

(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) MBATN—RER (&)
TBC(#&) B & E (&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the RARHE AELEE
Company (117) (939)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling  3E1%2 A% 4 25 FE 15 E5 18
interest (57) (462)
Loss and total comprehensive expense A &1 & & T X 4258
for the year (174) (1,401)
Net cash outflow from operating KL EBMBHE M FEE
activities (254) (636)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BEEBMBRSRL),
investing activities MAFER (525) 805
Net cash outflow from financing BB EBASRE N FE
activities (50) (800)
Net cash outflow R m L FEE (829) (131)

TEC S EREE (ER) ARARH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. ZXRFHMBEMRRARR HEEE
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) ZA2QFHBEMRE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Office equipment ENES L - 5
Interests in subsidiaries S ENGI Lo 105 105
105 110
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N E=NGIE ¢ 24,371 15,841
Amount due from a shareholder JE YRR B IR 539 539
Prepayment and other receivables TR FRIE R B A FE
WskIE 6,012 283
Cash and cash equivalents He kIR EEY 147 83
31,069 16,746
Total assets EEHE 31,174 16,856
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EATEB AEML
attributable to owners of the ERRHE
Company
Share capital [N 10,368 8,640
Reserves e (3,571) (16,749)
Total equity/(capital deficiency) RSB (EXREM) 6,797 (8,109)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. ARAMBRARRFZESE (&)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) 227 BN IR (E)
(Continued)
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
LIABILITIES 8E
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ¢ 3,329 2,706
Accruals and other payables EstERREMAE
RRIE 8,891 2,111
Loan from a substantial shareholder ~ EZREE K 12,157 20,148
24,377 24,965
Total liabilities BEBE 24,377 24,965
Total equity and liabilities BnkBERE 31,174 16,856
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEEFE/(AEFH) 6,692 (8,219
Total assets less total liabilities BEERLBERABERRE 6,797 (8,109)

—E - _FFR

EHEE (ZER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

B IEAR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z£2022F 12 A31H L FE

37. R T BRI R K 1k 4 2 B (4D)

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b)

Reserve of the Company

(b) ADAFEE

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
43 ME BERfGE 25t ER |t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL AL THT
At 1 January 2021 H2021E1 818 94,331 7,591 (129,028) (27,106)
Profit and total comprehensive SRR & 2 E I
income for the year B - = 10,357 10,357
At 31 December 2021 and M2021F12A318 K%
1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 94,331 7,591 (118,671) (16,749)
Profit and total comprehensive £ REF & 2 HE K #
income for the year ] = = 7,130 7,130
Issuance of new shares by way AEEHFRETH
of placing, net of issue costs ~ J& @ HBREITHA 6,048 - - 6,048
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 100,379 7,591 (111,541) (3,571)
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022512 A31H L FE

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 March 2023, Silverbricks Securities Company Limited
(the “Silverbricks”) as the placing agent and the Company
entered into a placing agreement (the “2023 Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company proposes to
offer for subscription and the Silverbricks has agreed to
procure not less than six placees on a best effort basis to
subscribe for up to 103,680,000 placing shares (the “New
Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.14 per New Placing
Share. The New Placing Shares will be allotted and issued
pursuant to the General Mandate on or before 31 March
2023. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 13 March 2023 and 14 March 2023.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2023.

38.

39.

—E - _FFR

BEHRNEH

R202343H13H » TEZEFGRE A A
([TERH]  EREENRE)EARNTRE
YR E R ([2023F B EHE]) @ Hit -
RAREBRIBEAERE - MITEZESFER
ERBEFHENEERFETDRABELEA
B 5% %103,680,0000% A & A% 17 ([ # &
BB - BRABRIESERMKH0.14%8
TG ° SR 15 1R2023F3831H 2
ARG — IR R BT - BEEZE
& BLEAQFHEA20235E3H13H
N 2023F3 A14HHIAE °
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEHBHRE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
In HK$’000 PAF & T 5w 20225 20214 20205 20194 20184
(Restated)
(& =E5)
Revenue g 34,645 61,128 29,866 20,838 14,785
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIATDREF] (B1) 10,030 22,851 (3,025)  (39,527)  (34,370)
Total comprehensive income/ FR2@EKEES
(expenses) for the year (A4 10,030 21,196 (3,036)  (41,014)  (38,371)
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREEME
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
In HK$’000 LT 8 T HIR 20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
(Restated)
(€= l))
Total assets BEHE 63,860 49,779 30,756 16,626 46,095
Total liabilities BER%E 32,134 35,859 38,032 27,079 21,252
Net assets/(liabilities) BEFE
(BEFH) 31,726 13,920 (7,276)  (10,453) 24,843
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